1/30/2024

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM

Audit Committee Varsity Hall Il, 2nd Floor
Thursday, February 8, 2024 UW-Madison Union South
8:45 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. 1308 W. Dayton Street

Madison, Wisconsin
& via Zoom Videoconference

A. Calling of the Roll
B. Declaration of Conflicts
C. Approval of the Minutes of the December 7, 2023, Audit Committee meeting
D. Internal Audit
1. Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Plan Progress Report
2. Summarized Results of Audits Recently Issued
E. Office of Compliance and Risk Management
1. Update on the Universities of Wisconsin Risk, Compliance and Audit (RCA)
Program

2. Update on Youth Protection and System Policy 625 Compliance

F. Office of Information Security
1. Cyber Insurance Policy Renewal Update

G. UW-Madison NCAA Division | Athletics 2022-23 Report

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item D.1.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

FISCAL YEAR 2024 AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY
One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee, as outlined in the committee charter, is
to review and approve the annual internal audit plan and receive interim progress reports

at least quarterly.

The attached chart provides a summary of audit progress for the Fiscal Year 2024 Audit
Plan.

Presenter(s)

e Lori Stortz, Chief Audit Executive

ATTACHMENTS

A) Universities of Wisconsin Office of Internal Audit Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Plan
Progress Chart.

Page 1 of 1



Number of Audits
O R N W » 1 OO N

Audit Committee Item D.1. Attachment A.

UNIVERSITIES OF WISCONSIN
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT

FISCAL YEAR 2024
AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS
Title Risks

1 Payroll (Bi-Annual Auditing) Fraud, Data Accuracy, Compliance with Policy
2 | Purchasing Cards (Bi-Annual Auditing) | Fraud, Embezzlement, Compliance with Policy
3 Compliance with Policy, Data Security, Data

Availability, Operational, Financial, Fraud
4 Conflicts of Interest, Fraud, Financial
5 ShopUW-+ Internal Controls Fraud, Financial, Operational
‘ Operationl Financil
7 Concussion Protocols Human safety, Compliance
8 Employee References Regarding Sexual Violence and Harassment Compliance, Reputational
10 Conformance with Institute of Internal Audit (IIA)

Standards and Code of Ethics
11 Fraud, Financial, Operational
12 Human safety, Operational, Reputational
13 Compliance with federal guidance
14 Human safety, Operational, Reputational,
Compliance
15 Academic integrity, Compliance, Fraud
16 Other Affiliated Organizations Financial, Operational, Reputational
VA Payment Card Industry Compliance - Representations from Universities to Compliance, IT data security
System
18 Regent Policy Document 13-1 (RPD 13-1), General Contract Approval, Legal, Compliance
Signature Authority, and Reporting

19 Madison NCAA Compliance
20 NCAA Athletics Division I and II Consulting Engagements Compliance with NCAA agreed-upon procedures
21 Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation (WEDC) Grants Grant compliance, Fraud

Not Started Planning Has Begun Fieldwork/Reporting  Bi-Annual Auditing Completed Deferred
in Progress




Audit Committee Item D.2.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

SUMMARIZED RESULTS OF AUDITS RECENTLY ISSUED

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY

Since the December 7, 2023, meeting of the Audit Committee, the Office of Internal Audit
has issued the following reports:

e Concussion Protocols Executive Summary
e General Ledger Clearing Accounts Follow-Up Audit Executive Summary
e NCAA Athletics Division | Agreed-Upon Procedures Engagement - Executive
Summary
o NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Report - UW-Green Bay
o NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Report - UW-Milwaukee
e Payroll Bi-Annual Audit - April A 2023 - September B 2023 Pay Periods Executive
Summary

Presenter(s)

e Lori Stortz, Chief Audit Executive

BACKGROUND

One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee, as outlined in the committee charter, is
to summarize results of audits recently issued.

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item E.1.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

UPDATE ON THE UNIVERSITIES OF WISCONSIN
RISK, COMPLIANCE AND AUDIT (RCA) PILOT PROGRAM

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY

The Universities of Wisconsin System Office of Compliance and Risk Management will
provide an update on the progress made to date on the Risk, Compliance and Audit (RCA)
Pilot Program.

Presenter
e Paige Smith, UW System Chief Compliance and Risk Officer
BACKGROUND

During the spring of 2023, the Universities of Wisconsin Office of Compliance and Risk
Management initiated a new program called the RCA (“Risk, Compliance and Audit”)
Program that would enhance and improve the manner, method, and timeline for
identifying, assessing, and managing high-level risks at the Universities of Wisconsin. The
program is intended to be a long-term process, starting with a pilot involving five
universities during the FY 23-24 academic year.



Audit Committee Item E.2.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

UPDATE ON YOUTH PROTECTION
AND SYSTEM POLICY 625 COMPLIANCE

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY

The Office of Compliance and Risk Management has been working closely with the
Universities of Wisconsin in the implementation and development of processes, policies
and structures to fulfill the requirements under System Policy (SYS) 625, Youth Protection
and Compliance. An update on the progress made to date will be provided.

Presenter

e Paige Smith, Chief Compliance and Risk Officer

BACKGROUND

On March 1, 2023, SYS 625 became effective and instrumental in supporting the
implementation of training, safe oversight of minors, policies, and standards for youth
protection and compliance. Since that date, the Universities of Wisconsin have been
implementing the new standards under SYS 625 through the guidance and support of the
Universities of Wisconsin Office of Compliance and Risk Management.



Audit Committee Item F.1.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

CYBER INSURANCE POLICY RENEWAL UPDATE

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY
An update on the Universities of Wisconsin 2023 cyber insurance renewal will be provided.
Presenter(s)

e Paige Smith, Chief Compliance Officer
e Edward Murphy, Associate Vice President and Chief Information Security Officer

BACKGROUND

Since 2015, the Universities of Wisconsin have successfully negotiated and purchased cyber
insurance systemwide. After two years of decreasing benefits and increased premiums, last
year we saw improved market conditions and increased coverage of security controls
across all institutions resulted in a slight increase in benefits and premiums. The trend of
increased benefits and coverage, combined with lower premiums has continued for the
2024 calendar year.

The Universities of Wisconsin will pursue longer term options and solutions to reduce cyber

risk and improve operational resiliency through critical, long-term planning for its
information security operations systemwide.

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item G.
Thursday, February 8, 2024

UW-MADISON NCAA DIVISION | ATHLETICS
2022-23 REPORT

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion.

SUMMARY

The University of Wisconsin-Madison (“UW") Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (Athletics
Department) is dedicated to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide range
of students and creating an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals, regardless of gender or ethnic backgrounds.

This report highlights the achievements of UW athletic teams in the National Collegiate
Athletic Association (NCAA) this past year. In addition, it addresses the measures and
benchmarks used to assess UW student athletes’ academic success across sports and in
comparison, to student athletes in the Big Ten and NCAA Division I. Also included are
financial highlights for 2022-2023, a copy of the Universities of Wisconsin Administration
Office of Internal Audit compliance review, and a list of Level Il & Level IV NCAA Violations.
Each area is supplemented with detailed reports.

Presenter(s)

e Chris McIntosh, Director of Athletics, UW-Madison

e Marcus Sedberry, Deputy Athletic Director, UW-Madison

e Adam Barnes, Senior Associate Athletic Director for Business Operations/CFO, UW-
Madison

e Katie Ahrens Smith, Senior Associate Athletic Director & Senior Woman
Administrator, UW-Madison

e Doug Tiedt, Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, UW-Madison

BACKGROUND

Collegiate athletics includes high-profile activities that exist for the betterment of the
student body, student-athletes, and the university. Athletic activities and programs provide
valuable experiences for student-athletes, opportunities to engage the broader community

Page 1 0of 2



and as a representative of the university to the public. This visibility, as well as the number
of student-athlete participants, the members of the public attending athletic events and
the substantial compliance requirements, necessitates a high level of oversight and
scrutiny by both administrators and governing bodies.

In 2012, the Association of Governing Boards of Colleges and Universities (AGB) issued a
report, “Trust, Accountability, and Integrity: Board Responsibilities for Intercollegiate
Athletics,” that highlighted the important role of higher education governing boards in
providing proper oversight of athletics programs. That same year, the Board of Regents
established a reporting framework for institutions that participate in NCAA Division |
athletics.

The Accountability Reporting Framework provides the Board with consistent information
about each NCAA Division | athletics program, enhancing the Board's ability to effectively
monitor the activities of the Universities of Wisconsin's Division | athletics programs.

Under the Regents’ Accountability Reporting Framework, each UW Division | athletics
program is required to provide information to the Board annually describing the extent to
which the program: 1) adheres to any performance standards implemented by a university
or its athletic board; 2) safeguards the welfare of all students; 3) maintains NCAA
compliance; and 4) assures fiscal integrity. The attached report is submitted in accordance
with those requirements.

Related Policies

e Regent Policy Document 10-1, “Endorsement of the Statement of Principles from the
Knight Foundation Commission on Intercollegiate Athletics”

e Accountability Reporting Framework for Board of Regents Oversight of NCAA
Intercollegiate Athletics Programs

ATTACHMENTS

A) 2022-23 Report to Board of Regents on Intercollegiate Athletics at UW-Madison

Page 2 of 2


https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf

Audit Committee ltem G. Attachment A.

2022-23

REPORT TO BOARD OF REGENTS ON INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS
AT UW-MADISON

February 8, 2024



[
2022-23 Executive Summary to Board of Regents

Introduction

This report provides information about University of Wisconsin-Madison intercollegiate athletics for the
Board of Regents. It addresses fiscal responsibility, academics, and compliance.

The Athletics Department: Makeup, Mission, & Membership

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of UW-Madison (“UW?”). While
retaining ultimate authority, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the University
of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility, and accountability for
the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic Director. There are no
exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the
University’s shared-governance system.’

The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide
range of students and providing an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals.

The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these
organizations.

On-Field Achievements

The 2022-23 athletic season featured a number of outstanding team and individual accomplishments,
headlined by the women’s hockey program’s seventh NCAA title. Badger football played in the
Guaranteed Rate Bowl, it's 215t consecutive bowl appearance (third-best in the nation), and defeated
Oklahoma State. Led by Big Ten champion Bob Liking, the men’s cross country team captured its
conference-record 53" league team title. Men’s track and field won its first Big Ten Indoor title since
2014, while 10 Badgers earned All-America honors to lead the men’s swimming team to its best
NCAA Championships finish since 2017. Wrestlers Dean Hamiti and Trent Hillger earned All-America
honors. Women'’s soccer student-athlete Emma Jaskaniec was named the Big Ten Midfielder of the
Year and earned All-America honors, while softball standout Kayla Konwent was tabbed an All-
American for the second time in her decorated career. Phoebe Bacon and Paige McKenna also
earned All-America honors to lead the women’s swimming team to its best NCAA Championships
finish since 2017. Women'’s tennis earned its first NCAA Tournament team appearance since 2019,
while the volleyball program captured its fourth straight conference title on the way to an appearance
in the Elite Eight of the NCAA Tournament.

Financial Highlights

The full report contains the final budget, debt balances and payments, and endowments for the 2022-
23 fiscal year (see Appendices C and D). The annual budget for the Athletics Department supports 23
sports and more than 800 student-athlete participation opportunities. The Athletics Department
employs nearly 400 full-time staff. The Athletics Department hosts more than 1.8 million spectators
each year and its economic impact has been estimated at $757 million annually, with nearly 5,600
jobs supported and created.

! For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B).



|
Academic Measures

The figures presented in the executive summary are also located in each of the corresponding
sections. Please refer to later sections if there are questions regarding the sources of this
information.

The Athletics Department uses various means to monitor the academic progress of the student-
athletes. The Federal Graduation Rate (FGR), Graduation Success Rate (GSR), and Academic
Progress Rate (APR) are the most recognizable of these measures.

The FGR is compiled by the U.S. Department of Education and measures the percentage of first-time,
full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering their original four-year institution. The
GSR differs from the FGR in that it excludes from the denominator those student-athletes who leave
the institution in good academic standing and includes in the numerator those who transfer into the
institution and go on to graduate. Lastly, the APR is a term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and
retention of all student-athletes. A score of 1,000 means every student-athlete on that particular team
stayed eligible and returned to school. Teams begin losing points for student-athletes who are not
eligible and/or are not retained.

Of the nine student-athletes in the 2016-17 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest revenue
men’s and women’s sports who did not graduate from the UW in six years, six transferred to other
institutions and earned their degrees, two transferred to other institutions and did not earn their
degrees, and one left early to pursue professional opportunities.

The APR for UW student-athletes — used by the NCAA to hold institutions accountable for the
academic progress of their student-athletes — was above 930 in all sports in the multiyear and single-
year measures. The GSR for UW student-athletes was 93% in 2022-23, which was three percentage
points higher than the GSR for all NCAA Division | student-athletes (90%). The UW student-athlete
four-year average FGR was 79% in 2022-23, compared to 77% for the Big Ten Conference, and 69%
for all NCAA Division | student-athletes. The four-year average FGR for all UW-Madison students was
88%.

The Academic Support staff also utilizes its own additional measures to track success. For example,
the Athletics Department considers a student-athlete successful who matriculates at UW and receives
Athletics aid, but graduates from another institution. This rate is compared to that of the general
student population at both a six- and ten-year mark.

University of Wisconsin student-athletes carried a 3.31 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the
end of the Spring 2023 term. After the Spring 2023 semester, 35 student-athletes carried a perfect
4.00 cumulative GPA. Between the Fall 2022 and Spring 2023 semesters, a total of 382 student-
athletes earned Academic All-Big Ten honors.

UW undergraduate and graduate student-athletes currently major in 96 diverse areas of study.
Personal Finance, Consumer Behavior & Marketplace Studies, Kinesiology, and Psychology are the
most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. Additionally, of these 96 areas of study,
there are currently 75 different areas in which 10 or fewer student-athletes have declared as majors. A
total of 150 current student-athletes graduated with either a Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the
2022-23 academic year.

The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review.



Agreed-Upon Procedures & Intercollegiate Athletics Budget Report

The full report contains reports from an independent auditor on the Athletics Department’s agreed-
upon procedures and budget report for the 2022-23 fiscal year.

Compliance

The Athletics Department recently underwent a compliance review by the UW System Administration
Office of Internal Audit for the 2022-23 academic year. The review did not identify any audit comments
to report.

The Athletics Department reported no Level | or Level |l violations (formerly classified as “major”
violations) and 13 Level lll or Level IV violations (formerly classified as “secondary” violations) to the
NCAA and Big Ten in 2022-23.



e
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS INTRODUCTION

A. MISSION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS .......eveeseseseseeseeseesesssesssssessssssssassessessassessassesssssssssssssnsenssneenes 1

B. NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION ......vuvrtriaisiesieeessessessensessenssessessessessessessessessessessensnesenaes 2

C. HISTORY OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETCS. c...euvturtuteersesrseeseesesseesessesesssisssse s sssessessessessesssssessessensessenns 2
In. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A. 2022-23 FINAL BUDGET REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) .....cvuuvrtriaiseiaeseesesssssesessesssssssssessessessessesssssenssssesssenes 4

B. 2022-23 DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) .....eureureurenrenrenressssessessessessensnesessnenennes 4

C. 2022-23 VALUE OF ENDOWMENTS DEDICATED TO SUPPORT ATHLETICS ....c.vureurenrenrenreseesensensessenseesennenenns 4
. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC PROGRESS

A. ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE .......cuttuttutiaiiariesesssessessessessessesssesesssss sttt ssessessessessessenseenes 4

B. GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE ......vuruuriariutiaesesesetsessesseesessesess ettt sttt ssessessessessessnesenaes 5

C. FEDERAL GRADUATION RATE.......0uttuttuteaitntentasessessessessessessessesssesesss sttt ssense e neessenns 6

D. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: GPA & MAJORS .......ouvrvriririarineisinsessi s sssssessessesse s senesenaes 7

E. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: SPECIAL ADMISSIONS OF STUDENT-ATHLETES ......vuvueveereseeseeseeseeseeseseeeeneenees 8
IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW

A\ SEE APPENDIX ...t totseseeseesee et se e es s s s a8 s s 8
V. NCAA SELF STUDY REPORT

A\ SEE APPENDIX ...t totseseeseesee et se e es s s s a8 s s 8
VI LIST OF LEVEL IIl & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER

A\ SEE APPENDIX ..ottt sttt s ettt 8
VI.  AGREED UPON PROCEDURES & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS BUDGET REPORT

A\ SEE APPENDIX ..ottt sttt s ettt 8

TABLE OF APPENDICES ..........couurvttuuirietsmaeeessaereesseeessssesssssses st ssss st sttt 9



C_________________________________________________________________________________
INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to provide annual information of intercollegiate athletics and the functions
outlined by the Faculty Senate to the Board of Regents. In the first section, information is provided
about the NCAA, the Big Ten, and the Intercollegiate Athletics Department. The subsequent sections
outline specific information addressing academics, fiscal responsibility, and compliance regulation.

I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of the University of Wisconsin-
Madison (“UW?”). While retaining ultimate authority subject to the general oversight of the Board of
Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority,
responsibility, and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the
Athletic Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the
authority of the faculty as part of the UW’s shared-governance system.?

A. Mission of Intercollegiate Athletics

The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide
range of students and creating an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals. The Athletics Department strives to provide equitable opportunities
for all student-athletes and staff regardless of gender or ethnic backgrounds. To honor its academic
mission and that of the UW, the Athletics Department supports the educational aspirations, academic
progress, and general welfare of the student-athlete. In competition, the Athletics Department fosters
principles of sportsmanship, respect, fair play, and athletic excellence. In all of its activities, the
Athletics Department insists on integrity, ethical conduct, and accountability.

The Athletics Department’s mission on behalf of the...

o Student-Athletes - Provide the resources for student-athletes to pursue their academic and
athletic dreams, while shaping their development into adulthood.

o University - Operate all areas of the Athletics Department with class and quality while
accepting our role as a source of school spirit and pride for all faculty, staff, students, and
alumni of the UW.

o Citizens of the State - Support the community by participating in a variety of public service
projects, hosting events that provide good entertainment and contribute positively to the
economy, and serving as a source of state pride through the academic achievement of our
student-athletes and successful performance in their athletic pursuits.

This mission is derived from the overall mission of the UW to provide the opportunity for highest
achievement in all areas of human knowledge and endeavor: intellectual, artistic, and physical.
Intercollegiate athletics is a part of the UW'’s total educational purpose: (1) through values; (2) through
diversity and outreach; (3) through cultural appreciation; and (4) through physical human
development. In addition to these four explicit interactions with the UW’s purpose, intercollegiate
athletics is aligned with the UW’s mission through tradition.

2 For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B).

1



[
B. National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA)

The colleges, universities, and conferences, referred to as “members,” make up the NCAA. The
members appoint volunteer representatives who serve on committees that introduce and vote on rules
called bylaws. The members also establish programs to govern, promote, and further the purposes
and goals of intercollegiate athletics.

Approximately 500 paid professionals who implement the rules and programs established by the
membership make up the “national office.” The national office staff is located primarily at the NCAA
headquarters office in Indianapolis, Indiana. The entire organization, comprised of members and
staffs, is referred to as the NCAA.

The NCAA's core ideology consists of two notions: core purpose — the organization's reason for being
— and core values — essential and enduring principles that guide the organization. Its purpose is to
govern competition in a fair, safe, equitable, and sportsmanlike manner and to integrate intercollegiate
athletics into higher education so that the educational experience of the student-athlete is paramount.
The NCAA - through its member institutions, conferences, and national office staff — shares a belief in
and commitment to:

» The collegiate model of athletics in which students participate as an avocation,
balancing their academic, social, and athletics experiences.

» The highest levels of integrity and sportsmanship.

« The pursuit of excellence in both academics and athletics.

» The supporting role that intercollegiate athletics plays in the higher education mission
and in enhancing the sense of community and strengthening the identity of member

institutions.

« Aninclusive culture that fosters equitable participation for student-athletes and career
opportunities for coaches and administrators from diverse backgrounds.

» Respect for institutional autonomy and philosophical differences.

» Presidential leadership of intercollegiate athletics at the campus, conference, and
national levels.

For more information regarding the NCAA, visit http://www.ncaa.org/.

C. History of Intercollegiate Athletics

The creation of athletic teams occurred just 25 years after the UW was founded in 1848. By the end of
the 19™ century, the UW joined six other schools to form the Western Conference (now known as the
Big Ten Conference). As a charter member of the Big Ten, the UW has a long and proud athletic
history.

Men’s sports dominated the scene at the UW until the late 1960s when women’s athletics began to
grow. Naming Kit Saunders as the administrator of the women'’s sports program in 1967 and the
enactment of Title IX of the Educational Amendments Act of 1972 both helped vault UW women’s
athletics into the mainstream. That movement, along with the growing popularity of sports on college
campuses around the nation, catapulted the Athletics Department into the college culture.


http://www.ncaa.org/

The 2022-23 athletic season featured a number of outstanding team and individual accomplishments,
headlined by the women’s hockey program’s seventh NCAA title. Badger football played in the
Guaranteed Rate Bowl, it's 21%t consecutive bowl appearance (third-best in the nation), and defeated
Oklahoma State. Led by Big Ten champion Bob Liking, the men’s cross country team captured its
conference-record 53™ league team title. Men'’s track and field won its first Big Ten Indoor title since
2014, while 10 Badgers earned All-America honors to lead the men’s swimming team to its best
NCAA Championships finish since 2017. Wrestlers Dean Hamiti and Trent Hillger earned All-America
honors. Women'’s soccer student-athlete Emma Jaskaniec was named the Big Ten Midfielder of the
Year and earned All-America honors, while softball standout Kayla Konwent was tabbed an All-
American for the second time in her decorated career. Phoebe Bacon and Paige McKenna also
earned All-America honors to lead the women’s swimming team to its best NCAA Championships
finish since 2017. Women'’s tennis earned its first NCAA Tournament team appearance since 2019,
while the volleyball program captured its fourth straight conference title on the way to an appearance
in the Elite Eight of the NCAA Tournament.

For more information regarding the Athletics Department, visit www.uwbadgers.com.

The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these
organizations.

Big Ten Conference

The Big Ten Conference is an association of 14 world-class universities whose member institutions
share a common mission of research, graduate, professional, and undergraduate teaching, and public
service. Intercollegiate athletics has an important place within the Big Ten’s common mission.
Conference institutions sponsor broad-based athletic programs supporting more than 300 teams.

Founded in 1896, the Big Ten Conference has sustained a comprehensive set of shared practices
and policies that enforce the priority of academics in student-athletes’ lives and emphasize the values
of integrity, fairness, and competitiveness. Big Ten universities provide nearly $200 million in athletic
scholarship aid to more than 9,500 men and women student-athletes who compete for 28
championships — 14 for men and 14 for women.

The Big Ten Conference institutions provide an avenue for thousands of young men and women to
pursue higher education while competing in sport. The Big Ten Conference sponsors the following 28
sports:

Men's Sports Women's Sports
Baseball Basketball
Basketball Cross Country
Cross Country Field Hockey
Football Golf
Golf Gymnastics
Gymnastics Lacrosse
Ice Hockey Rowing
Lacrosse Soccer
Soccer Softball
Swimming & Diving Swimming & Diving
Tennis Tennis
Indoor Track & Field Indoor Track & Field
Outdoor Track & Field Outdoor Track & Field
Wrestling Volleyball

3


http://www.uwbadgers.com/

|
For more information regarding the Big Ten Conference, visit www.bigten.org.
Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA)

The Big Ten Conference does not sponsor women’s hockey; thus the Athletics Department is a
member of the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).

From the WCHA's founding days as the Midwest Collegiate Hockey League (MCHL) from 1951-53, as
the Western Intercollegiate Hockey League (WIHL) from 1953-58, and ultimately as the Western
Collegiate Hockey Association in 1959, this prestigious association has maintained a tradition of
excellence that is second to none. With a noteworthy past that spans seven decades, three overriding
characteristics that have continued to define the WCHA over its existence are history, tradition, and
success.

For more information regarding the WCHA, visit http://www.wcha.com/.

Il. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A. 2022-23 Final Budget Report

Please see Appendix C for the detailed report.
B. 2022-23 Debt Balances & Payments Report
Please see Appendix D for the detailed report.

C. 2022-23 Value of Endowments Dedicated to Support Athletics

Market Value Cash/Interest
June 2023 $133,121,301 $5,952,897
June 2022 $124,267,994 $4,759,918

lll. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC
PROGRESS

A. Measure 1: Academic Progress Rate (APR)

Please see Appendix E for the detailed NCAA 2021-2022 report. This report is the most recent
publicly available data.

Definition: A term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and retention of all student-athletes. Each
student-athlete receiving athletically related financial aid earns one retention point for staying in
school and one eligibility point for being academically eligible. A team’s total points are divided by
points possible and then multiplied by one thousand to equal the team’s Academic Progress Rate
score.

Benchmark: Achieve a multiyear Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports.
Benchmark: Achieve a single-year Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports.

Number of Sports with a Multiyear APR below 930

Year APR <930

2022 0 sports
2021 0 sports
2020 0 sports



http://www.bigten.org/
http://www.wcha.com/

APR by Sport

Single-Year = 2021-22 academic year
Multiyear = 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 (avg. of single-year rates)

Men’s Sports Single-Year APR  Multiyear APR | C“g‘;fg"::; %'PR
Basketball 959 952 967
Cross Country 1000 972 983
Football 991 996 962
Golf 1000 1000 988
Hockey 981 980 984
Rowing N/A N/A N/A
Soccer 965 964 979
Swimming & Diving 983 983 985
Tennis 974 988 986
Track (1/0) 1000 974 974
Wrestling 1000 993 975

) : . Multiyear DI
Women’s Sports | Single-Year APR  Multiyear APR | \ "0 SV o APR
Basketball 961 976 982
Cross Country 1000 1000 989
Golf 1000 1000 993
Hockey 1000 987 991
Rowing 988 993 990
Soccer 988 997 989
Softball 975 994 988
Swimming & Diving 1000 1000 992
Tennis 1000 1000 991
Track (1/0O) 992 990 984
Volleyball 1000 1000 990

Three-Year single-year APR trend for the three largest revenue-generating sports

Football M. Basketball M. Hockey
991 959 981

2021-2022
2020-2021 987 925 1,000
2019-2020 1,000 979 990

B. Measure 2: Graduation Success Rate (GSR)

Please see Appendix F for the most recent published report.

Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering
their original four-year institution, excluding from the denominator those student-athletes who leave
the institution in good academic standing and including in the numerator those who transfer into the
institution and go on to graduate.



Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the median GSR for
the Big Ten Conference. Note: 2023 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2013-2016 cohorts.

UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference

Year UW S-A Big Ten S-A
2023 93% 93%
2022 91% 92%
2021 91% 92%

Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the GSR for all

NCAA Division | student-athletes. Note: 2023 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2013-2016

cohorts.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All Division | Student-Athletes

Year | UWS-A | D1S-A
2023 93% 90%
2022 91% 89%
2021 91% 89%

C. Measure 3: Federal Graduation Rate

Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering

their original four-year institution.

Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue Men’s

Sports*
Football Basketball Hockey
2022-2023 (2016-2017 Cohort) 1% 100% 100%
2021-2022 (2015-2016 Cohort) 86% 60% 43%
2020-2021 (2014-2015 Cohort) 71% 100% 64%

Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue

Women’s Sports*

Basketball Hockey ‘ Volleyball
2022-2023 (2016-2017 Cohort) 83% 71% 100%
2021-2022 (2015-2016 Cohort) 50% 100% 80%
2020-2021 (2014-2015 Cohort) 100% 100% n/a?

*There were 43 student-athletes in the 2016-2017 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest
revenue men'’s and women’s sports. Of the cohort, 34 student-athletes graduated from the UW in six
years; of the other nine, six transferred to other institutions and earned their degrees, two transferred
to other institutions and did not earn their degrees, and one left early to pursue professional
opportunities.

AThere were zero student-athletes in the 2014-2015 single-year FGR cohort for the sport of Volleyball.

(o)



|
Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all
UW-Madison students. Note: The 2023 reporting year represents 2016-17 entering freshman cohort.
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using
date from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All UW Madison Students

| Graduation Rate Four-Class Average
Year UW S-A uw UW S-A uw
2023 82% 89% 79% 88%
2022 77% 89% 76% 88%
2021 74% 88% 75% 87%

Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for the
Big Ten Conference. Note: The 2023 reporting year represents 2016-17 entering freshman cohort. The
four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using date
from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference

Graduation Rate \

Four-Class Average

Year UW S-A Big Ten S-A UW S-A Big Ten S-A
2023 82% 75% 79% 77%
2022 77% 76% 76% 76%
2021 74% 76% 75% 75%

Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all
Division | student-athletes. Note: The 2023 reporting year represents 2016-17 entering freshman cohort.
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using
date from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All NCAA Division | Student-Athletes

Graduation Rate

Four-Class Average

Year UW S-A D1 S-A UW S-A D1 S-A
2023 82% 69% 79% 69%
2022 77% 69% 76% 69%
2021 74% 69% 75% 69%

D. Additional Information: GPA & Major Selection

UW student-athletes carried a 3.31 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the end of the Spring
2023 term. After the Spring 2023 semester, 35 student-athletes carried a perfect 4.00 cumulative
GPA. Between the Fall 2022 and Spring 2023 semesters, a total of 382 student- athletes earned
Academic All-Big Ten honors.

UW undergraduate and graduate student-athletes currently major in 96 diverse areas of study.
Personal Finance, Consumer Behavior & Marketplace Studies, Kinesiology, and Psychology are the
most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. Additionally, of these 96 areas of study,
there are currently 75 different areas in which 10 or fewer student-athletes have declared as majors. A
total of 150 current student-athletes graduated with either a Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the
2022-23 academic year.



For a full list of majors, please see Appendix G. This chart is a breakdown of student-athletes’
declared maijors (by percentage) compared against the percentage of UW students who are majoring
in each of those areas. The categories of majors were predetermined by the report of major
breakdowns that is produced by the UW-Madison Registrar’s Office. The total number of student-
athlete majors is representative of the number of majors rather than the number of student-athletes,
because a student-athlete with a declared double major is counted twice.

E. Additional Information: Special Admissions of Student-Athletes

The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review. The Athletics Department’s goal is to recruit,
admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse student body. The academic record always comes first in
our review, but we also consider written statements, standardized test scores, extracurricular
activities, leadership involvement, and optional letters of recommendation.

IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW

The Athletics Department recently underwent a compliance review by the UW System Administration
Office of Internal Audit for the 2022-23 academic year. The review did not identify any audit comments
to report. Please see Appendix H for the full report.

V. NCAA SELF-STUDY REPORT
The NCAA self-study report requirement no longer exists. In lieu of this report, please see Appendix |
for the UW’s 2022-23 review of the effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional
Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics, as required by the Big Ten Conference.

VI. LIST OF LEVEL Ill & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION
LETTER

Please see Appendix J for the detailed report, and Appendix K for the letter.

VIl. AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET
REPORT

Please see Appendix L for the full report.



r o

TABLE OF APPENDICES

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE
N 1 2 = T PSPPI 10

THE BIG TEN CONFERENCE STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

................................................................................................................................................................................. 17
2022-23 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT FINAL BUDGET REPORT ......oviiiiiiriiiiie e 25
2022-23 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT ....coocvveriiiiiiennee 26
2021-22 NCAA ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE PUBLIC REPORT.......ceiiiiiiiieirit ittt sttt s nne e 27
2013-16 COHORTS GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE REPORT ......uttiiiiiieeiiiite ettt s sttt e ettt et e e ssne et e s e e s neneee s 29
2022-23 STUDENT-ATHLETE IMAJOR ANALYSIS ....cutteteiirete ettt esseeaeaatseeesastre e s sneeee s asse e e sansee e e aseeeesasbeeesanbreeenneneesanneeens 30
CoMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW BY UW SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT.....ccvviiiiieiieenireesieee e 33
2022-23 REPORT ON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF COLLEGE ATHLETICS .......ceevneene 34
2022-23 NCAA VIOLATION REPORT ..ceeuttiteiuttieesitteee ettt e sttt e e st e e s s et e s e st et e e sane e e e s asbe e e e aatee e e aanae e e s ebbe e e eaabreeennreeesneneeens 54
2022-23 NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER .....uuttteiuitieesieeeeastreee st e e st e e s i e e st e e snne e e s nsne e e sannne e e nnneeesnnneeens 55
AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET REPORT ......cviiiiieniiieiiie e 56



[
Appendix A

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON

STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNAMNCE
OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

At its June 1, 2014 meeting, the Big Ten Council of Presidents/Chancellors adopted “The Big Ten
Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics”
(the “Conference Standards”). The Conference Standards embody the firm and common
commitment of each Big Ten Conferance member institution to the core principle that
intercollegiate athletics must be properly aligned with the institution’s overall educational
mission. The University of Wisconsin-Madison fully supports the Conference Standards, and
adopts this document to demonstrate its commitment to the principles contained therein.
While many of the requirements of the Conference Standards are current University policy and
practice, the University is pleased to adopt this document and to fully implemeant the
Conference Standards. To the extent any existing policies or practices at the University ara
contrary to the principles and standards contained in this document, this document controls.

Basic Principles

In accordance with the principles set forth by both the Conference Standards and the Big Ten
Handbook, the University affirms that intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of the
educational mission of the institution, and that accordingly, governance of intercollegiate
athletics should be consistent with, and not independent from, the governance applicable to
other University units and programs.

Organizational Governance Standards

The Chancellor of the University, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconsin System, and working within the constructs of the principles of sharad
governance, has ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountability for the administration of
intercollegiate athletics. There are no exceptions to this authaority, responsibility, or
accountability.

While retaining ultimate authority, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility
and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic
Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation.

The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the University’s shared-
governance system. The Athletic Board is a University Committee with membership, functions

10



and responsibilities set forth in the University's Faculty Policies and Procedures.! The “authaority
of the faculty” in the University’s shared-governance system must be understood in the context
of the Chancellor being ultimately responsible for the institutional control of athletics.
However, Wisconsin law recognizes that chancellors are expected to consult with faculty in
discharging their responsibilities and recognizes the role of the faculty in governance.? In this
way, University faculty has the shared responsibility for academic and educational activities and
faculty personnel matters.?

Operational Standards for Athletics

The University reaffirms its policies and operational standards in the following areas: 1)
Academic Support; 2) Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance; 3) Admissions; 4)
Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct; 5) Medical and Athletic Training Services; and &) Cost
of Attendance.

1. Academic Support

Academic Success

The University is committed to providing student-athletes with academic support and
counseling (e.g., academic advising) that is adequate and appropriate for their progress toward
a degree and graduation. The personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the
primary concern of the University and the Athletic Board.

Academic Integrity

The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of (a) academic fraud and
misconduct, and (b) abusive use of independent study or clustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majors.

Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to ensure that athletic academic support staff members are free from potential
improper influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support
staff. Further, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the hiring or evaluation of
the performance of an academic support staff member, the ultimate authority for hiring and

! Appendix 1, University of Wisconsin-Madison Faculty Policies and Procedures (“FPP”), Section 6.26.

! Wisconsin Statute Section 36.09(4).

# For more information regarding the Role of the Athletic Board, see Appendix 2, Faculty Document 2114, “Role of
the Athletic Board.”

11



supervising academic support staff will reside with the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services.

In addition, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any faculty member. To
prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between the athletics
department staff and faulty regarding a student-athlete’s performance in class shall be
conducted through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff
members of the Office of Academic Services, staff members of the Office of Compliance, or
through the Faculty Athletics Representative.

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Senior Associate Athletic Director for
Student Services reports to the Athletic Board, chaired by the Faculty Academics
Representative, regarding academic performance and support.

2. Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance

Compliance Success

The University is committed to the detection and prevention of breaches of institutional,
conference and NCAA rules. The University does and will maintain appropriate and adequate
compliance staffing in order to maintain a compliant environment. In addition to the full-time
employees devoted exclusively to compliance issues, compliance is considered to be a shared
responsibility at the University. That is, other athletics department personnel, the Faculty
Athletics Representative, and the head coaches and administrators outside of the athletic
department who are responsible for the certification of student-athletes for financial aid and
practice and competition eligibility, are all expected to assume a primary rale in ensuring
compliance with all rules.

Prevention of Improper influence

In order to ensure that athletic compliance staff members are free from potential improper
influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence owver, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff.
Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
compliance staff in any way. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the
hiring or evaluation of the performance of an athletic compliance staff member, the ultimate
authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff will reside with the Senior
Associate Athletic Director for Compliance. Communication between the athletics department
staff and such compliance constituents as the Registrar's Office, the Student Financial Services
Office, Big Ten and NCAA regarding the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules shall be conducted
through the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of
Compliance.

12



In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Senior Associate Athletic Director for
Compliance reports to the Chair of the Athletic Board, {which is chaired by the Faculty
Academics Representative), regarding institutional, Big Ten and NCAA compliance. The
Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance shall also make available any information or reports
that may be requested by the Vice Chancellor for Legal Affairs.

3. Admissions
Admission Decisions

The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides in
the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the University, the Office of
Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions”). Student-athletes progress through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants. Admissions utilizes a holistic, competitive, and
selective review process. The goal is to recruit, admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse
freshman class. Admissions seeks students from groups that are underrepresented at the
University, including not only ethnic minaorities, but international students, those from rural
Wisconsin farm backgrounds, first-generation college students, women and men who have
served our country in the armead forces, and women interested in STEM (science, technology,
engineering, or math) majors. Admissions seeks students with special talent in music, dance,
art, athletics, or other areas of the University community.

Prevention of improper influence

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions persennel from individual schools and
colleges regarding prospective student-athletes, shall be conducted through the Senior
Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Cffice of Academic
Services.

4. Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct

University and Athletic Department Discipline

Under the authority of the University's Division of Student Life, student-athletes shall be
subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and shall be subject to the same procedures and sanctions. In addition to, and
independent from the process managed by the Division of Student Life, student-athletas are
further subject to the Student-Athlete Discipline Pelicy and to individual team rules.

Prevention of improper influence

13



In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff and the Division of Student Life regarding student-athletes shall be conducted
through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the
Office of Academic Services.

5. Medical and Athletic Training Services

Medical Decisions

The University places priority on a student-athlete’s health over other considerations. The
personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the primary concern of the
University and the Athletic Board. Health-related policies, procedures and protocols, including
those related to student-athlete concussions, will be followed.

Medical Services to student-athletes at the University are offered in a medical model of cara
under which the diagnosis and treatment of student-athletes is the ultimate responsibility of
the physicians employed by the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health,
administratively managed by its Division of Sports Medicine in the Department of Orthopedics
and Rehabilitation. The Athletic Department’s licensed athletic trainers practice under the
supervision of these physicians and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. Each
Head Team Physician is appointed by the Chair of the Department of Orthopedics and
Rehabilitation. The Head Team Physician and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine
assume joint responsibility for quality assurance and the monitoring of student-athlete care on
an ongoing basis. The Head Team Physician, Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine and
the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services meet monthly to review and address
the delivery of student-athlete medical care. Sports Medicine policies and procadures are
reviewed annually in May at a joint meeting between members of the Division of Sports
Medicine and members of the Athletic Department’s Sports Medicine staff. The Assistant
Athletic Director for Sports Medicine provides updates at each of the Athletic Board's Equity,
Diversity and Student Welfare Committee meetings.

Prevention of Improper Influence

The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition, resides
with the medical and athletic training staff. In order to ensure that medical and athletic training
staff are able to exercise their best professional judgment in caring for student-athletes,
coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper influence over,
the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff who works with
the coach’s own team. Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any
member of the medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical treatment of a student
athlete.

14



6. Cost of Attendance

Determination of Cost of Attendance

The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes shall be essentially the
same process utilized for all students. Cost of attendance is determined by the Office of Student
Financial Aid.

Prevention of Improper Influence

Coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the Financial Aid staff in
order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related
interests. In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between
athletics department staff, and the Office of Student Financial Aid, shall be conducted through
the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of Compliance.
The Director of Financial Aid should notify the Chancellor or designee of any inappropriate
communication relating to financial aid policy received from any booster or official of the
University of staff member in the Athletics Department.

Concearn Reporting

The University recognizes that ensuring compliance with the six areas of operational standards
set forth above necessarily requires that individuals have the ability to report concerns, fres
from fear of retaliation, regarding whether these standards are being followed. Individuals can
and should report any concerns they have in relation to these standards to the Athletic
Director, the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance, Compliance staff or the Faculty
Athletics Representative, with the knowledge that no retaliation will occur as a result of voicing
such concerns. Indeed, the University encourages individuals to report any concerns they may
have.

Ongoing Obligations

1. Annual Review

The University will conduct an annual internal review of the effectiveness of these Conference
Standards.

2. Reporting Requirements

Following the internal annual review, the University will report to the Big Ten Conference Office
on how it is achieving compliance with the Conference Standards, and how it is taking action to
avoid governance-related problems in athletics. Within this report, the University will describe

15



to the Big Ten Conference Office any violation of the Conference Standards.® The University
will report to the Big Ten Conference Office any revisions to this document, or any material
revisions to any incorporated Appendix, within thirty days of the adoption of any such revision.

*Within this requirement, it is understood that identifying and addressing violations in a timely manner is a
characteristic of a properly functioning compliance system—indicative of a system that is working as opposed to a
system that is malfunctioning. Accordingly, vielations of these standards that are properly identified and addressed
in a timely manner are to be accounted for in the annual report within the context of demonstrating the
effectiveness of the standards. By contrast, violations that are indicative of systemic failures of the standards [e.g.,
system malfunctions) are to be reported to the conference office within a timeframe that is contemporaneous to
the time at which such failures are discovered.

16



[
Appendix B

THE BIG TEN CONFERENCE

STANDARDS FOR SAFTEGUARDING
INSTITUTIONAL GOVEENANCE OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

The Big Ten Conference’s history demonstrates that high-level athletic programs can be
successfully maintained at top research universities and advance the mission of such
nniversities. Incorporating athletic competition within the broader framework of higher
education also presents challenges. however, particularly given the visibility of intercollagiate
athletics and the passion it engenders. Good govemance of athleties within the structure of
each Big Ten Conference Member Institution 15 essential to manage these challenges. The
public’s trust in a Member Institution and the value of its intercollegiate athletics program are
eroded when the Institution fails to implement sound governance principles applicable to its
athletics programs. principles that are reflective of those applied to its academic programs and
consistent with the values of higher education.

While not alone in this regard, Big Ten Member Institutions have experienced lapses in
achieving sound governance of their athletic programs. All Member Instituticns are affected
when any Member Institution fails to maintain proper control over its intercollegiate athletics
programs. Recognizing this, the Big Ten Couneil of Presidents/Chancellors (COPC) directed
the Conference "to initiate an immediate review of the fundamental issues and systems
affecting intercollegiate athletics, inclnding the serious issues relating to control of athletics.™

Institutions that affiliate in an athletics conference should have commeon values and
conumen objectives. The Conference's attention to maintaining institntional integrity and
earning public trust predates the activities of the NCAA  which did not begin in earnest until
the 1960's. Members of the Big Ten Conference have traditionally come together to deal with
mmportant matters of commeon concem. For example, in 1972, the Conference formed an
Advisory Commission on the Integration of African-American Athletes to advance their
opportumties for participation in intercollegiate athletics at Member Instifutions. In 1992, the
Conference was a national leader in adopting measures and malking concerted efforts to
advance gender equity of student-athletes at the Member Institutions. The Conference has had
a long history of establishing academic standards governing eligibility of student-athletes, and
the Conference office and the Memiber Institutions have regularly interacted in a constructive
manner to improve practices at Member Instimitions, especially those involving academic and
compliance matters. Conference attention to the integrity of the zovernance of athletic
programs is clearly consistent with this tradition.

The Risks Associated with Failure to Implement Good Governance Policies

To be successful in their objectives, Member Institutions depend in large measure on
public trust and confidence. The failure effectively to govern any part or program of the
Institution, including athletics, nndermines public trust and confidence in the Institution.

17



Because of the high level of public interest in Big Ten sports, the risks of deparfures from
good governance procedures in athletics are significant, and the impact of such departures on
public trust and confidence may prove to be severe.

The loss of public trust in a Member Institution because of governance problems
affecting its athlefics programs has many negative consequences:

*  the reputations of the individual Member Institution and all other Member
Institutions in the Conference are damaged;

*  injury to reputation reduces support for athletics and other programs among the
Member Institution’s various constituencies (faculty, staff, students, alumi. donors,
fans, legislators, and the general public);

*  lack of public confidence invites outside infervention in the Member Institution’s
affairs;

+  student-athletes may lose opporfunities for lessons in teanvwork, effort, fair play,
and the pursuit of excellence becanse of program-related sanctions;

*  the Member Institution may suffer financial losses and additional costs when if is
difficult for the Institution to absorb them.

The visibility, competitiveness, and passion associated with intercollegiate athletics
combine to create a high-risk. high-reward environment which places great pressures on good
governance procedures. At Member Institutions, athletics departments are expected to
produce revenue streams through successful sports programs that will be sufficient to find
broad-based athletic programs without addifional institufional support. Fans and boosters have
high expectations and higher hopes, coaches and administrators seek the job security winning
programs provide, the extraordinary popularity of athletics grows every vear, and the financial
consequences of success and failure are very high, both individually and institutionally. Fans
or boosters. in pursuit of personal agendas or through a misplaced desire to “help™ their
favorite programs, are drawn fo interact with coaches and student-athletes in ways that may
circumvent ordinary procedures or violate the mules governing athletics. Some parficipants. by
their celebrity status, obtain concentrated power far beyond that held by other emplovees or
students. Successful coaches, major donors, and other persons of influence can seek to
circuntvent normal lines of authority and to exercise mndue and improper influence over the
actual responsible or accountable decision-makers. All of these problems are exacerbated if
authority over athletic decision-making is unclear or i3 not formalized in official institutional
policies.

For all of these reasons, the COPC proposes to address collectively the issues of integrity
in intercollegiate athletics by encouraging the adoption by Member Institutions of clearer
governance standards and to engage the Conference office to assist Member Institutions in
implementing these standards.

18



Basic Principles

The Big Ten Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Govemnance of
Intercollegiate Athletics (Conference Standards) conform to the following basic principles:

1.  Conference policies for governance of athletics should reflect a common
commitment to integrity and good governance practice while recognizing the
autonony of the Member Institutions 1n fashioning their own organizational
5%1:21{&5 and allocafing authornity, responsibility, and accountability fo their own
officials.

2. Each Member Institution should have a set of governance standards that clearly
define the authority over, and responsibility and accountability for, the governance
of its athletic programs. Each Member Insfitution should be E_Epa:tﬁi to comply
fully with its own standards.

3. Intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of each Member Institution.
Accordingly, athletic governance should be consistent with, and not i
from the governance applicable to other university units and programs. For

. each Member Institution in the Big Ten provides that the President or

Chancellor of the Institution is the chief executive officer and is responsible and
accountable for the general adnunistration of the Instiution, subject to the
general oversight of a Govemning Board or a Systems Administration or both.
Absent specific policies to the contrary, the President or Chancellor should,
therefore. be the responsible and accountable officer for decisions made with
respect to athletics.

Organizational Governance Standards

Each Member Institution shall have written standards relating to the allocation of

authority, ﬁﬂsﬂ]ﬂlh’ and accountability for interco athf:late athletics af ifs Institution. These
standards prescribe the governance structure for athletics at the Member Institution. It is

anficipated that, at a mintmum_ the standards shall:

1. a Provide expressly or by general description, that the President or Chancellor,
subject to the general oversight of the Governing Board or Systems
Administration or both, and working within the constructs of the principles of
shared governance held by each Member Institution, has nltimate authority,

nsibility, and accountability for the administration of intercollegiate
etics,

b. State any exceptions to this authonty, responsibility, or accountability.
2. a. Provide, expressly or by general descrniption, that the President or Chancellor

has delegated authority. responsibility. and accountability for the
administration of the Athletics Department to the Athletics Director, and

b. State anv exceptions to that delegation.

19



3. State the role and responsibility of any other institutional officer, board, or
committee with Dr?ansibﬂiﬁ' for 1ssues relating to intercollegiate athletics,
including those officers, boards, or commuittees who or which play an advisory role
to the Athletics Director or to the President or Chancellor relating to intercollegiate

athletics.

4. Establish procedures to implement the expectation that those with authority and
responsibility to govern the athletic programs of the Member Institufion do so
without improper influence from others within or outside the Institution.

Operational Standards for Athletics

The integrity of the govemnance of a Member Instifution’s intercollegiate athletics
prﬂqg;am 15 threatened when improper influence is brought to bear on Member Institution
officials to make a decision that is not in the best interest of the Institution or, in more egregious
cases, that violates the Institution’s, the Conference’s, or the NCAA s mules. Certainly, the line
between providing advice or a 1ate advocacy on the one hand and undue or improper
influence on the other is not a % but, at one time or another, that line has been crossed
at vanious Member Institutions. Operational standards that address the exercise of improper
mfluence on i t decision-making affecting athletic programs at each Member Instifution
should reduce the nisk that such situations will recur.

Each Member Institotion shall, therefore, have written standards with respect to the
tion of its Athletics Department and units within the Institution that interact with its
. tics Department. The purpose of these operational standards shall, at a mininmm_ be to:

1. Assure that the unit that provides academic support services for student-athletes
operates without undue influence by Athletics Department staff. including coaching
staff. Each Institution’s operational standards shall, therefore, be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from: (1) having direct responsibality for. or exercising undue or
mmproper influence over. the hirng or supervision of any member of
academic support staff, and (i1) a ting to influence inappropriately any
member of the acadenuc support staff or any faculty member in order to u%tain
or maintain the academic eligibility of a student-athlete.

b. Detect and prevent (i) academic fraud and misconduct, and (ii) abusive use of
independent study or clustering of student-athletes in particular courses or
majors.

c. Provide sudent-athletes with academic support and counseling that 1s adequate
and appropriate for their progress toward a degree and graduation.

d. Route communications between Athletics Department staff and faculty
regarding student-athletes” performance in classes through the Director of
Academic Support Services or his'her designee(s) or through the FAR

In addifion, good practice suggests that the Director of Academic Support Services
should report to an academic administrator outside the Athletics Department, such
as the Provost or FAR | either exclusively or as a dual report to that administrator
and the Athletics Director.

20



Assure that the units that enforce compliance with the rules and regulations of the
Member Institution. Conference, and NCAA have sufficient independence from
athletics staff to meet their responsibilities. Each Instifution’s operational standards
shall. therefore, be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from (1) having direct responsibility for. or exercising undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the
athletics compliance staff. and (i1) attempting to influence mappropriately any
member of the athletics compliance staff

b. Detect and prevent breaches of the Institution’s, the Conference’s, and the
NCAA's mles.

c. Provide adequate and appropriate athletics compliance staffing for the
Instifution.

In addition. good practice suggests that. for oversight purposes. the Director of
Compliance should report to an administrator outside the Athletics Department,
such as the Campus Compliance/ Tntegrity Officer, General Counsel, or FAR. either
exclusively or as a dual report to that administrator and the Athletics Director.

Asgure that the admission process for student-athletes is essentially the same as that
for other applicants with special talents. Fach Institution’s operational standards
shall, therefore, be designed to:

a. Place final decision-making authority for the admission of student-athletes in
the same office that admits other lmgﬂrgradmte applicants to the Member
Institution.

b. Foute all commmunications regarding prospective student-athletes between
Athletics Department staff and the admissions office through the Athletics
Director or his/her designee(s).

In addition. good practice suggests that the Director of Admissions should notify
the President or Chancellor or his'her designee(s) of any inappropnate
communication relah.% to the adnussion of a prospective student-athlete receved
from any booster or official of the Member Institution or from any staff member in

the Athletics Department.

Assure that student-athletes are subject to %.{ disciplinary rules and codes of
conduct applicable to other students at the Member Institution.  Each Institution’s
operational standards shall, therefore. be designed to:

a. Apply such rules and codes, including the same procedures and sanctions, as

well as any Athlefics olicies applicable specifically to student-
athletes and any team miles, fo s -athletes.
b. Roufe commmmications regarding student-athletes between Athletics
Department staff and s disciplinary staff through the Athletics Director or
5
21



his'her designee(s).

In addition, good practice suggests that the Dean of Students or his/her designes
should notify the President or Chancellor or his'her designee(s) of any
mappropriate commmunication on behalf of a student-athlete in connection with a
disciplinary decision, especially if that comnmnication is from a booster or official
of the Member Institution or from any staff member in the Athletics Department.

5. Assure that the medical and athletic tramning staff who provide medical services to
student-athletes are able fo exercise their best professional judgment in caning for
student-athletes. Each Institufion’s operational standards shall, therefore, be
designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from (1) having direct responsibility for, or exercising undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical
or athletic training staff who works with the coach’s own team. and (i)
attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the medical or athletic
traiing staff regarding the medical treatment of a student-athlete.

b, Allow for effective implementation of and adherence to institutional policies,
procedures, and/or protocols regarding student-athlete concussions.

c. Place priority on the student-athlete’s health over other considerations.

In addition, good practice suggests that the Director of Sports Medicine Services
should report to an academic or medical adnindstrator outside the Athletics
Department. either exclusively or as a dual report to the adnunistrator and the
Athletics Director.

6. Assure that the process for determining an institntion’s cost of attendance for
student-athletes is essentially the same as that for all students, and that the vnit that
determines an institution’s cost of attendance values for financial aid purposes
operates without undue influence by Athletics Department staff, including coaching
staff. Each Institution’s operational standards shall, therefore. be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from attempting to influence mappropriately any member of
the financial aid staff in order to adjust an institution’s cost of attendance values
to better serve recruiting or other athletically related inferests.

b. Route all conmmmications regarding financial aid between Athletics Department
staff and the financial aid office through the Athletics Director or his/her

designes(s).
In addition, g c%mctme suggests that the Director of Financial Aid should notify
the President or cellor or us'her designee(s) of any

mapproprate
communication relating to financial aid policy received from anv booster or official
of the Member Institution or from any staff member in the Athletics Department.

22



Enforcement of the Policies

The Member Institutions recognize that the infegrity of the governance of intercollegiate
athletics 1s important for the Conference as well as for intercolleguate athlefics generally and
that failures of one Member Institution affect the reputation of all Member Institutions.

Accordingly, the Member Institutions agree fo the following relating to enforcement of these
Cﬂﬂferen%smﬂdards: g ratng

1

Annual Review - Members. Each Member Institution will conduct an anmual
internal review of the effectiveness of the standards it has implemented in
fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

Reports to/by Conference.

a.

After conducting its internal review, each Member Institution will report
annually to the Conference on how it is achieving compliance with these
Conference Standards and taking action to avoid governance-related problems
in athletics. It will attach to that report copies of the standards it has
umplemented in fulfillment of these Conference Standards. Each Member
Institution will also submit copies of any revisions to its standards to the
Conference within thirty (30) days after their adoption.

After reviewing the reports from the Member Institutions, the Conference will
prepare a summary in which it will draw on the reports to provide information
to the Member Instifutions that will assist them in complying with these
Conference Standards. The Conference will submit the summary to the COPC
for review and discussion at a COPC meeting. The Conference summary may
include recommendations for changes in the Conference Standards for
consideration by the COPC.

Compliance.

a.

Each Member Institution will conply with the standards if has implemented in
fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

If the Conference receives a report or allegation that a Member Institution is not
in compliance with these Conference Standards, (1) it shall so advise the
Member Institution and require that it file a detailed response to the report or
allegation. including means to achieve compliance if the Member Institution
determines that the report or allegation is. in one or more respects, accurate; and
(11) it mav conduct its own investigation of the report or allegation. The
Member Institution will cooperate with the Conference’s investigation.

Each Member Institution will report to the Conference any violation of the
standards 1t has implemented in fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

23



4 Enforcement.

a. Informal Actions. The purpose of these Conference Standards 15 to enhance the
integrity of the governance of intercollegiate athletics among the Member
Instifutions. In the event a Member Institution does not achieve complete
compliance with these Conference Standards, the initial response should be that
the Conference and the Member Institution engage in constructive conversations
whose goal is greater compliance with these Conference Standards by the
Member Instifution.

b. Formal Actions. In cases where a Memiber Institution persistently fails to
comply with these Conference Standards. the Commissioner may recommend
corrective action to the COPC. The COPC may request information from the
Member Institution. which the Member Institution will provide, and the
Commnussioner, may, if so instructed by the COPC, conduct a more formal
hearing on the matter The COPC may adopt the Comnussioner's
recommendation or any other corrective action designed to enhance the Member
Institution’s compliance with these Conference Standards. Such corrective
action may include:

1. Financial penalties, including a reduction of Conference distributions.

1. Probation, under terms that reasonably relate fo comrecting the failure to
comply.

1i. Suspension from participation in a particular sport, or from membership in
general, for a stated period of time.

iv. Expulsion from membership.

The Big Ten Conference is a voluntarv association of Member Institutions. The
Conference Bylaws provide that suspension of membership, expulsion from the
Conference, or placement on probation each requires a vote of at least 70% of the
Membership. It 15 extraordinanly unlikely that a Member Institution would be
expelled unless the failure to comply with these standards was so persistent and
serions that it indicated the Member Institution no longer subscribes to the common
values and objectives of the Conference and the other Member Institutions.

5. Effective Date

These Conference Standards were approved by the COPC on June 1, 2014 effective for
the Conference and all Member Institutions on August 1, 2015. Between the approval
date and the effective date, the Conference will assist each Member Institution in
preparing to comply fully with the Conference Standards as of the effective date.

24



Appendix C

2022-23 Wisconsin Athletics Budget Report

Please note that the figures presented below represent the University’s accounting practices. Figures
included in Appendix L conform to NCAA reporting requirements.

2022-23
Budget Actual
REVENUE
Concessions & Catering $2,675,000 $3,857,718
Conference Distributions $58,222,000 | $61,046,494
Events $2,835,000 $3,706,930
Gift Funds $33,000,000 | $44,085,918
Multi Media $18,490,000 | $17,130,262
Other Revenue $9,834,000 | $13,351,416
Post Season $2,600,000 $3,255,942
Ticket Sales $30,355,000 $31,727,729
Transfers to Institution ($9,920,000) | ($10,649,168)
TOTAL REVENUE | $148,091,000 | $167,513,241
EXPENSE
Salaries & Fringe Benefits $62,770,000 | $77,030,089
Debt Service $17,250,000 $16,642,453
Financial Aid $14,000,000 | $11,842,697
Operational Expenses $51,046,000 | $56,951,652
Post Season Participation $3,000,000 $4,892,212
TOTAL EXPENSE | $148,066,000 | $167,359,103
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) $25,000 $154,138
Capital Projects $27,000,000 | $20,467,034
Ending Cash Balance $320,752

(Unrestricted Fund Balance)

25




Appendix D

2022-23 University of Wisconsin Athletics Department Debt Balances & Payments Report

Project

Camp Randall Stadium Renovation
(2004)

Crew House

Nielsen Tennis Stadium Floor
University Ridge Golf Course
Hockey/Swimming Facility
Student Athlete Performance
Center

Camp Randall South End Zone
Renovation (2022)

Kohl Center Addition & Renovation

Total Debt Service - GO Bonds

Outstanding Debt, as of 6/30/23

26

7,365,769

394,263
16

60,185
6,645,709

38,671,942

32,827,494
15,456,536

101,421,914

Debt Service
Payment FY ‘23

7,148,659

406,554
3
13,206
588,207

1,910,726

2,163,665
1,078,100

13,309,120



endix E

A

7101 3%eq

"MILNST ISPUN ST EIEP WAV 5,WEAL 1B S0 1
-Burpuad s115anbar maresm Aeusd s uonmnso ST o1

“pRATEM U23q se OMqidna usseasisog 5 WES) 3T 5

-pasodur 3q sou 1snm Areuad 21 puE TONIPUOD 31 1330 01 PI[TE] WE A1 ‘IRaamot] pastem A[Euonipuod Lsnotsard seam jem Aeuad e o1 103lgqns st mes Ay P

‘paamEm uaq sey AEuad oM (3457 5, WeES Ay 9

“paatem Taaq sey Ayeuad aug) (343 5 WES] ST c

uzmzao1dmy Jmapese paensuowap 5 we=) 2yl o1 2np uonnadwod uoseasisod 10§ AmgiStpEur o1 102(qns 10U ST mEN 1= sAN0UR] v

“318Y 5530005 TONENPEIS) 5 IES] 31 PUE S32M0S3I TIPS PUE SINSNE ‘Euonmnsut o paseq uonnadmwod wosessisod 1op AmgrSt=ur 01 103(qns 10U ST wes] 191 Sa10U3(] c

-pasodut 2q sou isnm Areuad 2 pUE UOTIPUOD I 133 03 PR} WE [ 1343M0Y [paatem A[Euontpucd Apsnowad sem e Areusd v 01 103lgns ose sTmE YL z

“Teutod UOMDAY[0? BIEP JV AU UTMPLM qB1 S0d3Y A1) U0 PAIEI0] IUAMNI0P ATRUINMG [RIAU3D) Y 21 U p21edo] aq Aew Aeuad uoseas 3onaexd pue Smde(d 2 wo uopemIogu aypads |

896 76 626 0.6 cl6 ci6 mOL-m0 mO0T-W06 000°T £66 {57) Fumsaiy 5551
286 086 086 836 086 086 m0g-T0c moc-mor vis 886 (og7) Ty suepy

c : (pET) Buraiqg

£95 086 086 186 €56 cos mob-moE moc-mop €85 £86 pue Sumurtamg S usg
8.6 6.6 186 186 116 5.6 TOz-T0T mOz-T0T g5 06 (207) 120305 s
786 86 686 £86 986 786 OrT0E TOr-p0E 186 086 p— m_.mm
N 8% 895 176 096 796 w0310z TO0T-T06 T66 966 (:57) o0

; y . (1)

cs5 086 cg6 836 086 €86 00z moE-moz 000°T 76 £numon ssors saa

g y (zge)

<96 cog 0c6 ue £96 96 POTsT mOE-TOT 656 zc6 [aEseg S0
6.6 695 o6 86 606 6 sz moc-mor 0007 vL6 (z67) 3oL sy

5,3y - 110dg Ag
T e e SUORMBSUL | yonmpsuponqng | Tuostq Iy | s IV M | aedSummn L0 120z | Wav Teskmmiy (3) 0dg
-wo) puorsg | o0 [mog [eqio0 aweapg gt =t Fuey EuBdBRI | quey AmuIIag :

*[EUI] SE BIEP DTUISPEIE 1131} PATINIaD aAry BT spenbs [[e uo paseq aie saye8a185e euone)] "sdnoidqns palou 10} sagelaae Y4V wods-4q sjuasardal 1eyd Summorio] ayL

[z10p snp 133)p appw pipp 01 sabupya {up 193724 Jou saop 1i0dad s1yl Ul uonDULLOjUl 3YT "JOoquAs . up Aq papoIpul
24D pup passaiddns uaaq 2ApY sa12[YID-JUIPTIS Lama] 1o aa4y] Buruipjuoo sjjao piop ‘suonpinbal {ovaled [paapa] Jo uonpiaidiaqul (5, Yy T L) 510V Aopald pup spybry jpuonoonpg
Ao 7 8y3 yiim 25upplLo22p uf sdnotb 1iods uipliad ulylim 53215 ajdwns [Jows aapy J[1s Aow sponbs awos 'sipad 21wappap unoj Jof s1 110dad S1Y7 Ul PaUIDIU0D UoRDULICU] JTY 1310N]

"s1eaf JTWSPEJE 7Z-TZ0Z PUB TZ-0207 ‘02- 6TOZ ‘6T-8T0C W 10] UONMTsU a3 Aq panruqns e1ep (YJV) 818y ssa1801q STUSPEIY ] UOTSIANT VDN UO Paseq st Hodal sty

£207/5T/+0 Modag Jo 21eQ UOSIPE-UTSTOISTAY J0 AISIaATi) “UonmInS]

yoday [euonmusuj Aey ssarsold JWIPLIY 70T - 1Z0T I UOISIAIQ VVIN

27



7 1o ageg

AT I3PUN ST EIRp YAV 5. WRL 1B STOUI(T 4
-Bmpuad s115anba1 marem Sreusd sponmmsur sy o
“PRATEM U330 SEY LTITEAUT U0SEAsIS0 5 MWEA AT 5
-pasodu 2q sou 1snm Aenad A pUR TIPS A 133WI 01 PATE] MR A TAAdmOT] ‘pasrem Aenonrpuod Asnotaand seso e Aeusd v o walqns stmes sy o
"paaTRM U=3q soy Ayeuad 0M] [3AST S MR AU o
‘pRarEsm Ta2q sy Aeuad aug [AssT 5 WES] T c
TRMRADINIT JMIEpEIE PAEDSIOWAD 5, WES] 311 0] 3np uonnadmos uoseansod 107 Ammqrise o1 103(qns 10u ST WES] 19T SA10UA] N
319y S3II0 UORRNPRIL) S WR3] 31 PUP S30IN0S31 JUPRIs PUS sINI[RE [PUOHMRSUT 10 paseq uonnadwed voseasisod 103 AMIqISHRUT 01 123(qus 10U ST wes] 19 s310u3(]
-pasodut aq mou 150 AyEuad AU pUE DOMIPUOD S 183UI 01 PR[TR] MRS A1 “Raamot] ‘pasrem A[Enonpuod Asnotand sem 1eq dpeusd e o palqns ose stmes) sy z
“Texod UOM2ATI0D EIER 4 1 UNPLM qE1 si0day 310 U0 PAIEIO] WISWNI0p ARWMNG [RI13T25) JY S Ul piedo] aq Aew Afeuad uosess sonoend pue Surderd s uo uonewmopur ayRads 1

pA-0D) - 1iodg &g

166 186 266 266 686 066 06108 TOT-06 0007 000 ademon w.nmmmw
766 686 266 266 166 166 T06R08 TYOT 06 0007 000 {opg) staua s pamoy,
066 886 066 £66 386 686 T08-m0L WoE-m0L 886 166 (Tr€) 2005 s mamoy
066 166 266 £66 166 266 T06-R08 TYOT-06 0007 000 g 6T) Buaiq pre
T MG S TATmo A
886 286 066 066 186 886 T0L 009 TOLT09 <6 766 (00€) TRauos
866 686 66 266 066 166 Toc-moy woE-m0T 0007 286 JR— w.ﬁhww
266 166 <66 266 £66 £66 T06108 WO 06 000 000 (290 7109 smamoy
266 166 886 166 886 066 TOLH09 WL 09 886 €66 (gg) oy spamay
166 186 166 266 886 686 06108 00T-106 0007 000°T {peg) fnmod
55017 5 UATHOAY
£86 086 c86 186 086 286 T0E-mOT woE-m0T 196 026 S w.ﬁmm_w
786 186 286 586 186 v86 T09-B0S W0, P09 266 066 (cpe) eI smemoyy
5 umop, - Meds 4
.86 886 066 066 386 286 T06008 TY0T-06 0007 000 (£67) 7199 5551
(raoog | g e uomsIApqng swopmpsup | o u su0dg iy ump | 110dg unpm . makn () 1a0d
uox) ruoppng | ST | o ooy e ARSI AN | UV | e | e g | MV ZO0TTZ0 | MaV wakmmiy S

woday [euonmusuy ey ssardord JUWRPLIY ZZ0¢ - TZ0Z I UOISIAIJ VVON

EZ0Z/ST/0 uoday Jo :ieQ

UOSTPRJA-UTSTOISTA 10 ANSIFATU[) [UOTIMINSU]

28



|
Appendix F

Graduation Success Rate Report

2013 - 2016 Cohorts: University of Wisconsin-Madison

Wi 's Sports
Men's Spﬂm 'omen's 5po
Sport GSR Fed Rate
;Pm;au GSR  FedRate _ . . SN
aze - -
Beach Voll - -
Basketball 92 77 Bfﬂch_ng eyball
oW, - -
CCTrack a8 7
Fmd;; " T CCfTrack %6 8
Foothall 2g 76 ?E“i"lRME 97 90
Golf 82 82 EReimE
G 4 Field Hockey - -
ymnastics - -
Golf 100 100
Ice Hockey 80 56 ]
Lacrosze _ } Gymnastics - -
T -
Mixed Rifle : _ ‘E* Ice Hockey 95 90
Skiing ) . 5;:_[055&
in - -
Soccer 80 63 =
Swimming a2 75 Soccer 100 84
: i Softball 100 81
Tennis 100 a0 o
Volleyball , i Swimming 100 81
Water Polo - ] Tennis 100 86
Volleyball 100 a2
Wrestling 95 a7 “{: 1::}1? o
ater Po - -
Men's Non-NCAA ) o
Sponsor. Sports - - Women's Non-NCAA Sponsor. ) .
Sports
29



Appendix G

UW Student-Athlete Majors vs. UW Student Body Majors (as of 1/7/24)
UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS

Undergraduate Major

S-A
%

#S-A

Majors*

#UW

Majors*

Agricultural and Applied Economics 3 0.43% 46 0.10%
|1§ricultural Business Management 2 0.29% 58 0.12%
Agronomy 1 0.14% 23 0.05%
Animal Sciences 5 0.71% 145 0.30%
Anthropology 1 0.14% 54 0.11%
Art 7 1.00% 208 0.43%
Athletic Training 1 0.14% 25 0.05%
Biochemistry 5 0.71% 281 0.59%
Biological Systems Engineering 5 0.71% 72 0.15%
| Biology 27 3.85% 1219 2.55%
Biomedical Engineering 10 1.43% 653 1.37%
| Business: Accounting 6 0.86% 380 0.79%
Business: Actuarial Science 2 0.29% 203 0.42%
| Business: Analytics 6 0.86% 110 0.23%
Business: Finance, Investment and Banking 31 4.42% 1405 2.94%
| Business: Information Systems 3 0.43% 176 0.37%
Business: International Business 3 0.43% 218 0.46%
| Business: Management and Human Resources 9 1.28% 363 0.76%
Business: Marketing 15 2.14% 850 1.78%
| Business: Operations & Technology Management 3 0.43% 123 0.26%
Business: Real Estate & Urban Land Economics 16 2.28% 647 1.35%
| Business: Risk Management and Insurance 6 0.86% 252 0.53%
Business: Supply Chain Management 6 0.86% 235 0.49%
| Cartography & Geographic Information Systems 1 0.14% 44 0.09%
Chemical Engineering 2 0.29% 508 1.06%
| Chemistry 1 0.14% 180 0.38%
Civil Engineering 15 2.14% 332 0.69%
| Clinical Rehabilitation Counseling 1 0.14% 40 0.08%
Communication Arts 29 4.14% 631 1.32%
| Communication Sciences and Disorders 1 0.14% 226 0.47%
Community and Nonprofit Leadership 6 0.86% 99 0.21%
| Computer Engineering 3 0.43% 561 1.17%
Computer Sciences 12 1.71% 2227 4.66%
| Conservation Biology 1 0.14% 182 0.38%
Consumer Behavior and Marketplace Studies 45 6.42% 906 1.89%
| Data Science 11 1.57% 1066 2.23%
Economics 22 3.14% 1150 2.40%
| Education Studies 4 0.57% 79 0.17%
Educational Leadership and Policy Analysis 5 0.71% 79 0.17%
| Electrical Engineering 4 0.57% 428 0.89%
Elementary Education 9 1.28% 436 0.91%
| Engineering Mechanics 4 0.57% 199 0.42%
Engineering Physics 3 0.43% 30 0.06%

30




Undergraduate Major # .S'A* S-A
Majors %
English 1 0.14% 299 0.63%
| Environmental Engineering 2 0.29% 103 0.22%
Environmental Sciences 4 0.57% 16 0.03%
| Environmental Studies 6 0.86% 249 0.52%
Food Science 1 0.14% 92 0.19%
| French 1 0.14% 53 0.11%
Genetics and Genomics 3 0.43% 374 0.78%
| Geography 2 0.29% 81 0.17%
Geology and Geophysics 1 0.14% 50 0.10%
German 2 0.29% 22 0.05%
Global Health 4 0.57% 384 0.80%
| Health Promotion and Health Equity 31 4.42% 288 0.60%
History 2 0.29% 380 0.79%
| Horticulture 1 0.14% 50 0.10%
Human Development and Family Studies 11 1.57% 373 0.78%
| Industrial Engineering 4 0.57% 376 0.79%
Information Science 2 0.29% 73 0.15%
| Interior Architecture 5 0.71% 169 0.35%
International Studies 2 0.29% 272 0.57%
| Journalism 2 0.29% 566 1.18%
Kinesiology 39 5.56% 529 1.11%
| Landscape and Urban Studies 1 0.14% 57 0.12%
Landscape Architecture 1 0.14% 7 0.01%
| Latin 1 0.14% 6 0.01%
Law 1 0.14% 748 1.56%
| Legal Studies 8 1.14% 363 0.76%
Life Sciences Communication 20 2.85% 186 0.39%
| Mathematics 3 0.43% 557 1.16%
Mechanical Engineering 20 2.85% 1242 2.60%
| Microbiology 4 0.57% 183 0.38%
Music 1 0.14% 124 0.26%
| Neurobiology 17 2.43% 792 1.66%
Nuclear Engineering 2 0.29% 73 0.15%
| Nursing 9 1.28% 871 1.82%
Nutritional Sciences 6 0.86% 73 0.15%
| Personal Finance 62 8.84% 480 1.00%
Philosophy 1 0.14% 174 0.36%
| Physical Education 3 0.43% 40 0.08%
Physical Therapy 1 0.14% 118 0.25%
| Physics 1 0.14% 142 0.30%
Political Science 12 1.71% 999 2.09%
| Psychology 39 5.56% 1618 3.38%
Public Health 1 0.14% 117 0.24%
| Rehabilitation Psychology 11 1.57% 116 0.24%
Social Welfare 2 0.29% 166 0.35%
| Sociology 6 0.86% 243 0.51%
Spanish 3 0.43% 331 0.69%
| Special Education 2 0.29% 88 0.18%

31




Undergraduate Major

Sports Leadership 28 3.99% 57 0.12%
Statistics 1 0.14% 253 0.53%
| Textiles and Fashion Design 3 0.43% 99 0.21%
Wildlife Ecology 3 0.43% 110 0.23%
Zoolog 1 0.14% 132 0.28%
Total 701 100% 32513 67.98%

Note: As students with more than one major are counted as one unit in each major, the total number of majors
may exceed the total number of students. Students who have not declared majors are not included in these
calculations.

**Number of majors includes students who are declared in pre-majors.

A This number represents only the majors listed above. The total number of undergraduate students with a
major equals 33,842.

32



Appendix H

UNIVERSITY OF | Office of Internal Audit
wlﬁ[uHuH STSTEH’ T80 Regent Street, Suite 305

. Madison, Wisconsin 53715
(608) 263-4397
wisconsin.edu'offices/audit!

To: The Umiversity of Wisconsin System Board of Regents Andit Committee

We have completed an internal audit of Nafional Collegiate Athlefic dAssociation (NCA4) Compliance at
the University of Wisconsin-Madison (UTW-Madison) for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023,
Oner andit was conducted in conformance with the Intarnational Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing. While perfornung this audit, we did not identify any andit comments.

The cbjective of this andit was to evaluate the UW-Madison Athletic Department’s compliance program in
accordance with the NCA4 2022-2023 Division I Manual {manual) for selected topics.

This commmnication is infended solely for the information and vse of management and others within the
UW System, including the Board of Fegents. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this
commumication, which upon final issuance is a matter of public record.

We appreciate the cooperation afforded to us by individuals within the TTW-Madison Athletic Department
during the performance of this andit.

Best regards,

amanda ﬂ:‘ frtme
Amanda Nehmer, CPA
Director, Office of Internal Audit

November 13, 2023

[ Jenmifer Mnookin, Chancellor
Chriz Mclntosh, Director of Athletics
Eatie Smith. Semor Associate Athletic Director & Sr. Woman Administrator
Toel Ott, Director of Compliance
Brady Minter, Associate Director of Compliance
Fob Cramer, Interim Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
David Murphy, Associate Vice Chancellor for Finance
David Honma, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration, Controller

Eeport Control #2024-03-E5 Page |1

33



[
Appendix 1

Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics
University of Wisconsin- Madison's Annual Report for 2022-23

As required by the Big Ten Conference and University of Wisconsin-Madison's Standards for
safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics (“Standards”), the University
has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the Standards. The time period coverad
by this review is August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023_ A copy of the University’s Standards
(Appendix omitted), is included with this Annual Report as Exhibit 1.

COreganizational Governance Standards

The allocation of authority, responsibility, and accountability for intercollegiate athletics at the
University remains as stated in the University's Standards. The Chancellor of the University,
subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System,
and working within the constructs of the principles of shared governance, continues to have
ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountability for the administration of intercollegiate
athletics. While retaining ultimate authority, the Chancellor has delegated the autharity,
responsibility, and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to
the Athletic Director. The University’s Athletic Board continues to exercise the authority of the
faculty as part of the University's shared governance system.

Operational Standards

In arder to determine whether the University achieved compliance with the Standards, the Office
of Legal Affairs reviewed the Standards with the following members of the University community,
who would be in a position to verify such compliance and identify any deviations from the

requirements of the Standards:

# Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, Mr. Doug Tiedt;

& Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance & Senior Woman Administrator, Ms.
Katie Smith;

* Associate Vice Provost & University Registrar, Mr. Scott Owczarek;

¢ Director of Admissions and Recruitment, Mr. André E. Phillips;

¢ [Dean of Students, Ms. Christina Qlstad;

* Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine, Mr. Michael Moll;

¢ Head Team Physician, Dr. David T. Bernhardt; and

¢ Director of the Office of Student Financial Aid, Ms. Helen Faith.

Each of these members of the University community has provided a written statement comparing
their own knowledge and experiences with the requirements of the Standards. These written
statements have also been attached to this Annual Report as Exhibit 2. During these reviews, two

34



instances of potential non-compliance during the year under review were identified and have
been attached to this Annual Report as Exhibit 3.

Conclusion

Based upon our review of the statements contained in Exhibit 2 and instances of potential non-
compliance contained in Exhibit 3, we believe that the University is achieving compliance with the
Standards and taking action to avoid governance-related problems in intercollegiate athletics.
The University will remain vigilant regarding continuing compliance, and will report any revisions

to its Standards document to the Conference within thirty days of the adoption of any such

revision.
—DuruSgned By,
[ Senanifor Misebing 1/26/2024
Jennifer Mnookin, Chancellor (date]
——DoouSagmned by
[ e 1/26/2024
Chris Mcintosh, Director of Athletics (date)
— DuewSegmed By
[ M, e SII_.;,LLII,.;,._? 1/26/2024
Ann Sheehy, Athletic Board Chair (date)

35



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Exlubit 1

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON

STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIOMNAL GOVERNANCE
OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

At its June 1, 2014 meeting, the Big Ten Council of Presidents/Chancellors adopted “The Big Ten
Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics”
(the “Conference Standards”). The Conference Standards embody the firm and common
commitment of each Big Ten Conference member institution to the core principle that
intercollegiate athletics must be properly aligned with the institution’s overall educational
mission. The University of Wisconsin-Madison fully supports the Conference Standards, and
adopts this document to demonstrate its commitment to the principles cantained therein.
While many of the requirements of the Conference Standards are current University policy and
practice, the University is pleased to adopt this document and to fully implement the
Conference Standards. To the extent any existing policies or practices at the University are

contrary to the principles and standards contained in this document, this document controls.

Basic Principles

In accordance with the principles set forth by both the Conference Standards and the Big Ten
Handboak, the University affirms that intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of the
educational mission of the institution, and that accordingly, governance of intercollegiate
athletics should be consistent with, and not independent from, the governance applicable to
other University units and programs.

Organizational Governance Standards

The Chancellor of the University, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconsin System, and working within the constructs of the principles of shared
governance, has ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountahility for the administration of
intercollegiate athletics. There are no exceptions to this authority, responsibility, or
accountability.

While retaining ultimate authority, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility
and accountahility for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic
Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation.

The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the University’s shared-
governance system. The Athletic Board is a University Committee with membership, functions

36



and responsibilities set forth in the University’s Faculty Policies and Procedures.® The “authaority
of the faculty” in the University’s shared-governance system must be understood in the context
of the Chancellor being ultimately responsible for the institutional control of athletics.
However, Wisconsin law recognizes that chancellors are expected to consult with faculty in
discharging their responsibilities and recognizes the role of the faculty in governance.? In this
way, University faculty has the shared responsibility for academic and educational activities and
faculty personnel matters.3

Operational Standards for Athletics

The University reaffirms its policies and operational standards in the following areas: 1)
Arcademic Support; 2) Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance; 3) Admissions; 4)
Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct; 5) Medical and Athletic Training Services; and 6) Cost
of Attendance.

1. Academic Support

Academic Success

The University is committed to providing student-athletes with academic support and
counseling (e.g., academic advising) that is adequate and appropriate for their progress toward
a degree and graduation. The personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the

primary concern of the University and the Athletic Board.
Academic Integrity

The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of (a) academic fraud and
misconduct, and {b) abusive use of independent study or clustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majors.

Prevention of Improper influence

In arder to ensure that athletic academic support staff members are free from potential
improper influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support
staff. Further, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the hiring or evaluation of
the performance of an academic support staff member, the ultimate authaority for hiring and

! Appendix 1, University of Wisconsin-Madison Faculty Policies and Procedures (“FPP”), Section 6.26.

* Wisconsin Statute Section 36.09(4).

* For more information regarding the Role of the Athletic Board, see Appendix 2, Facufty Document 2114, “Role of
the Athletic Board.”

37



supervising academic support staff will reside with the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services.

In addition, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any faculty member. To
prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between the athletics
department staff and faulty regarding a student-athlete’s performance in class shall be
conducted through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff
members of the Office of Academic Services, staff members of the Office of Compliance, or
through the Faculty Athletics Representative.

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Senior Associate Athletic Director for
Student Services reports to the Athletic Board, chaired by the Faculty Academics

Representative, regarding academic performance and support.

2. Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance

Complionece Success

The University is committed to the detection and prevention of breaches of institutional,
conference and NCAA rules. The University does and will maintain appropriate and adequate
compliance staffing in order to maintain a compliant environment. In addition to the full-time
employees devoted exclusively to compliance issues, compliance is considered to be a shared
responsibility at the University. That is, other athletics department personnel, the Faculty
Athletics Representative, and the head coaches and administrators outside of the athletic
department who are responsible for the certification of student-athletes for financial aid and
practice and competition eligibility, are all expectad to assume a primary role in ensuring
compliance with all rules.

Prevention of improper Influence

In order to ensure that athletic compliance staff members are free from potential improper
influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff.
Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
compliance staff in any way. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the
hiring or evaluation of the performance of an athletic compliance staff member, the ultimate
authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff will reside with the Senior
Associate Athletic Director for Compliance. Communication between the athletics department
staff and such compliance constituents as the Registrar's Office, the Student Financial Services
Office, Big Ten and NCAA regarding the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules shall be conducted
through the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of

Compliance.

38



In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Senior Associate Athletic Director for
Compliance reports to the Chair of the Athletic Board, (which is chaired by the Faculty
Arademics Representative), regarding institutional, Big Ten and MCAA compliance. The
Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance shall also make available any information or reports
that may be requested by the Vice Chancellor for Legal Affairs.

3. Admissions
Admission Decisions

The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides in
the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the University, the Office of
Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions"). Student-athletes progress through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants. Admissions utilizes a holistic, competitive, and
selective review process. The goal is to recruit, admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse
freshman class. Admissions seeks students from groups that are underrepresented at the
University, including not only ethnic minorities, but international students, those from rural
Wisconsin farm backgrounds, first-generation college students, women and men whao have
served our country in the armed forces, and women interested in STEM (science, technology,
engineering, or math) majors. Admissions seeks students with special talent in music, dance,
art, athletics, or other areas of the University community.

Prevention of improper Influsnce

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions personnel from individual schools and
colleges regarding prospective student-athletes, shall be conductzd through the Senior
Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic
Services.

4. Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct

University and Athletic Department Discipline

Under the authority of the University's Division of 5tudent Life, student-athletes shall be
subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and shall be subject to the same procedures and sanctions. In addition to, and
independent from the process managed by the Division of Student Life, student-athletes are
further subject to the Student-Athlete Discipline Policy and to individual team rules.

Prevention of improper Influsnce

39



In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff and the Division of Student Life regarding student-athletes shall be conducted
through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the
Office of Academic Services.

5. Medical and Athletic Training Services

Medical Decisions

The University places priority on a student-athlete’s health over other considerations. The
personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the primary concern of the
University and the Athletic Board. Health-related policies, procedures and protocols, including
those related to student-athlete concussions, will be followed.

Medical Services to student-athletes at the University are offered in a madical model of care
under which the diagnosis and treatment of student-athletes is the ultimate responsibility of
the physicians employed by the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health,
administratively managed by its Division of Sports Medicine in the Department of Orthopedics
and Rehabilitation. The Athletic Department’s licensed athletic trainers practice under the
supervision of these physicians and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. Each
Head Team Physician is appointed by the Chair of the Department of Orthopedics and
Rehabilitation. The Head Team Physician and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine
assume joint responsibility for quality assurance and the monitoring of student-athlete care on
an ongoing basis. The Head Team Physician, Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine and
the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services meet monthly to review and address
the delivery of student-athlete medical care. Sports Medicine paolicies and procedures are
reviewed annually in May at a joint meeting between members of the Division of Sports
Medicine and members of the Athletic Department’s Sports Medicine staff. The Assistant
Athletic Director for Sports Medicine provides updates at each of the Athletic Board's Equity,
Diversity and Student Welfare Committee meetings.

Prevention of improper Influence

The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition, resides
with the medical and athletic training staff. In order to ensure that medical and athletic training
staff are able to exercise their best professional judgment in caring for student-athletes,
coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper influence over,
the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff who works with
the coach’s own team. Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any
member of the medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical treatment of a student
athlete.

40



6. Cost of Attendance

Determination of Cost of Attendance

The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes shall be essentially the
same process utilized for all students. Cost of attendance is determined by the Office of Student
Financial Aid.

Prevention of iImproper Influence

Coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the Financial Aid staff in
order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related
interests. In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between
athletics department staff, and the Office of Student Financial Aid, shall be conducted through
the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of Compliance.
The Director of Financial Aid should notify the Chancellor or designee of any inappropriate
communication relating to financial aid policy received from any booster or official of the
University of staff member in the Athletics Department.

Concern Reporting

The University recognizes that ensuring compliance with the six areas of operational standards
set forth above necessarily requires that individuals have the ability to report concerns, free
from fear of retaliation, regarding whether these standards are being followed. Individuals can
and should repart any concerns they have in relation to these standards to the Athletic
Director, the Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance, Compliance staff or the Faculty
Athletics Representative, with the knowledge that no retaliation will occur as a result of voicing
such concerns. Indeed, the University encourages individuals to report any concerns they may

have.

Ongoing Obligations

1. Annual Review

The University will conduct an annual internal review of the effectiveness of these Conference
Standards.

2. Reporting Requirements

Following the internal annual review, the University will report to the Big Ten Conference Office
on how it is achieving compliance with the Conference Standards, and how it is taking action to
avoid governance-related problems in athletics. Within this report, the University will describe

41



to the Big Ten Conference Office any viclation of the Conference Standards.* The University
will report to the Big Ten Conference Office any revisions to this document, or any material

revisions to any incorporated Appendix, within thirty days of the adoption of any such revision.

“Within this requirement, it is understeod that identifying and addressing viclations in a timely manner is a
characteristic of a properly functioning compliance system—indicative of a system that is working as opposed to a
systemn that is malfunctioning. Accordingly, violations of these standards that are properly identified and addressed
in a timely manner are to be accounted for in the annual report within the context of demonstrating the
effectiveness of the standards. By contrast, violations that are indicative of systemic failures of the standards (e.g.,

system malfunctions) are to be reported to the conference office within a timeframe that is contemporaneous to
the time at which such failures are discovered.

42



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Exhibit 2

standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Doug Tiedt
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards"), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services. | would expect to be
made aware of any problems related to student-athlete academic support, admission, discipline,
or medical and training services.

With regard to Section 3 of the Standards, “Admissions;” Section 4 of the Standards,
“Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct;” and Section 5 of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic
Training Services,” | am not aware of any instances of non-compliance with these Standards. With
regard to Section 1 of the Standards, “Academic Support,” | am aware of two instances of non-
compliance, as detailed in Exhibit 3. Maore specifically, in my role as Senior Associate Athletic
Director for Student Services, | confirm the following for all instances other than those detailed in
Exhibit 3:

¢ The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of academic fraud and
misconduct and abusive use of independent study or clustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majors;

* While, as a result of sport calendars and team schedules, multiple student-athletes may
end up taking the same classes, there has been no abusive use of clustering that would
bring into question the academic integrity of any of those classes;

# Mo coach had direct respansibility for, or exercised undue or improper influence aver, the
hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support staff;

# Mo coach attempted to inappropriately influence any member of the academic support
staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student-athlete;

¢ The ultimate authority for hiring and supervising academic support staff resided, and will
continue to reside, with me;

* | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any faculty member;

¢ All communication between the Athletic Department staff and faculty regarding a
student-athlete’s performance in class was conducted through me, the staff members of
my office, the staff members of the Office of Compliance, or through the Faculty Athletics

Representative;

43



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

¢ The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides
in the Office of Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions”™), which is the same office that
admits other undergraduate applicants to the University;

& Student-athletes progressed, and will continue to progress, through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants;

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions
personnel from individual schools and colleges regarding prospective student-athletes has
been appropriately conducted through my office;

¢ While coaches are occasionally invited by Admissions to provide insight regarding an
applicant for admission, | am not aware of any coach attempting to assert undue influence
over the admissions process;

¢ Under the authority of the Division of Student Life, student-athletes were, and continue to
be, subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students
at the University, and were, and continue to be, subject to the same procedures and
sanctions;

* Any actions taken by the Athletic Department under its own Student-Athlete Discipline
Policy or under any individual team rules were in addition to, and independent from, the
process managed by the Division of Student Life;

*  Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Division of Student Life
regarding student-athletes was, and will continue to be, conducted through my office;

& | am not aware of any coach attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the
staff of the Division of Student Life;

¢ The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and will continue to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

¢ Coaches did not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper influence
aver, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff; and

¢ | am not aware of any coach attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the
medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical treatment of a student-athlete.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

—— OuruSmgnud by

T”lum}h - 1/20/2024
_| UL 578 4%
Douglas A. Tiedt, 5r. Assoc. AD (date)

44



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Katie Smith
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance and Senior Woman
Administrator. | would expect to be made aware of any problems related to compliance with
institutional, conference or MCAA rules and any problems related to eligibility of student-athletes.

With regard to Section 2 of the Standards, “Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules
Compliance;” and Section 6 of the Standards “Cost of Attendance,” | am not aware of any
instance of non-compliance with these Standards. With regard to Section 1 of the Standards,
“Academic Support,” | am aware of two instances of non-compliance, as detailed in Exhibit 3.
Mare specifically, in my role as Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance, | confirm the
following for all instances other than those detailed in Exhibit 3:

¢ | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete;

* | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any faculty member;

¢ All communication between the Athletic Department staff and faculty regarding a
student-athlete’s performance in class was conducted through the Senior Associate
Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff members of the Office of Academic
Services, the staff members of my office, or through the Faculty Athletics Representative;

# Mo coach had direct responsihility for, or exercised undue or improper influence aver, the
hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff;

# Mo coach attempted to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic compliance
staff in any way;

# The ultimate authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff resided, and
will continue to reside, with me;

¢ Communication between the Athletic Department staff and such compliance constituents
as the Registrar's Office, the Office of Student Financial Aid, Big Ten, and NCAA regarding
the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules was and will continue to be conducted through

my office;

45



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

¢ | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any member of the
Financial Aid staff in order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or
other athletically-related interests; and

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Office of Student Financial Aid
has been conducted through my office.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

D Segra by, /
A7 2
[ - S 1/15/2024

'& s L Lk

Katie Smith, Sr. Assoc. AD & SWA (date)

46



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Scott Owczarek
To Whaom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Associate Vice Provost and University Registrar. In that role, the Athletic
Academic Eligibility Specialist reports to me through the Assistant Registrar for Data Reporting
and Eligibility and the Associate Registrar for Academic Services. | would expect to be kept
informed of any issues or problems related to monitoring of student-athlete compliance with
institutional requirements, NCAA and Big Ten policies regarding progress toward degree status,
certification of eligibility (for incoming freshman, transfer and continuing student-athletes), and
the completion and submission of two annual reports required by the NCAA, the Academic
Performance Plans and Graduation Success Rates. | am unaware of any instance in which a coach
or any other member of the Athlstic Department exerted any inappropriate influence in any of
these areas.

With regard to Section 2 of the Standards, “Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules
Compliance,” | am not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. With regard
to Section 1 of the Standards, “Academic Support,” | am aware of two instances of non-
compliance, as detailed in Exhibit 3. More specifically, in my role as Associate Vice Provost and
University Registrar, | confirm that my office’s communication with the Athletic Department in
those areas has appropriately been through either the Senior Associate Athletic Director for
Student Services or the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance.

| further confirm that my staff and | are familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of
the Standards, and we are encouraged to report any future concerns we may have regarding

compliance with the Standards.

—DucuSigned by
[ St Puwiemank 1/20/2024
Scott Owcezarek, Associate Vice Provost & University Registrar (date)

47



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of André E. Phillips
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Director of Admissions and Recruitment. The individuals responsible for making
decisions regarding the admission of potential students to the University report to me. | expect to
be kept informed of any issues or problems related to the admission of student-athletes to the
University.

With regard to Section 3 of the Standards, “Admissions,” | am not aware of any non-
compliance during the year under review. Maore specifically, in my role as Director, | confirm the

following:

¢ Student-athletes progressed, and will continue to progress, through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants;

¢ The final decision-making authaority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides
in my office, which is the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the
University;

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff, and my office, including admissions
personnel from individual schools and colleges regarding prospective student-athletes,
has been appropriately conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services; and

¢ While coaches are occasionally invited by my office to provide insight regarding an
applicant for admission, no coach has attempted to assert undue influence over the
admissions process.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

— DucwSgned by

lnde £, Plillips 1/23/2024

André E. Phillips, Director of Admissions and Recruitment (date)

48



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Christina Olstad
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

I am the Dean of Students within Student Affairs. In that role | oversee the Office of
Student Conduct and Community Standards (“05CC5") and the individuals responsible for
investigating and adjudicating student conduct at the University report to me. In this position |
was made aware of potential issues related to student conduct throughout the year under review
and was informed of any issues or problems related to student-athlete conduct at the University.

With regard to Section 4 of the Standards, “Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct,” |
am not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role

as Dean of Students, | confirm the following:

* Under the authority of the O5CCS, student-athletes were, and continue to be, subject to
general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and were, and continue to be, subject to the same procedures and sanctions;

* Any actions taken by the Athletic Department under its own Student-Athlete Discipline
Policy or under any individual team rules were in addition to, and independent from, the
process managad by the OSCCS;

* Communication between Athletic Department staff and the O5CCS regarding student-
athletes was conducted through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services; and

* Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the staff of the
O5CCS.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

—OuruSgned by
[ {lurstie. Medad 1/20/2024

Christina Olstad, Dean of Students (date)

49



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Michael Maoll
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. In that role, | oversee the
Athletic Trainers for the University's athletic teams. As Assistant Athletic Director, | would
expect to be kept informed of any issues or problems a team Athletic Trainer may have with

regard to student-athlete cars.

With regard to Section & of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic Training Services,” 1 am
not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. Mare specifically, in my role as
Assistant Athletic Director, | confirm the following:

# | am not aware of any policies, procedures, or protocols affecting the health or well-
being of a student-athlete, including those related to student-athlete concussions,
which have not been followed;

* The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and continues to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

# Coaches did not, and do not, have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic training
staff; and

¢ Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
training staff regarding the medical treatment of any student-athlete.

I further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

— DueuSyned by
[ tghacl Mell 1/23/2024
Michael Moll, Asst. AD for Sports Medicine (date)

50



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Dr. David T. Bernhardt
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its 5tandards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Team Physician for Men’s Basketball, Men's Cross Country, Women's Cross
Country, Women's Crew, Women's Lightweight Crew, Men's Track & Field, Women's Track &
Field, and Women's Volleyball. | am also the Head Team Physician, overseeing the medical care
provided by the Team Physicians for the University's other programs. In my role as Team
Physician, | have direct experience with the management and treatment of student-athlete
injuries. As Head Team Physician, | would expect to be kept informed of any issues or problems
another Team Physician may be having with regard to student-athlete medical care.

With regard to Section 5 of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic Training Services,” | am
not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role as
Head Team Physician, | confirm the following:

+ Health-related policies, procedures and protocols, including those related to student-
athlete concussions, have been be followed;

* The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and continues to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

¢ Coaches did not, and do not, have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical staff;
and

¢ Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the medical staff
regarding the medical treatment of any student-athlete.

I further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

[ Dasid Brnaland! 1/25/2024
Dr. David T. Bernhardt (date)
51



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Helen Faith
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my office’s experiences during the year under review, which | understand to
be August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023.

| am the Director of the Office of Student Financial Aid. The individual responsible for
compiling and determining the University's cost of attendance, the Associate Director for Federal
Awards, reports to me in my role as Director. | would expect to be kept informed of any issues or
problems related to the calculation of cost of attendance or application of cost of attendance to a
student-athlete at the University.

With regard to Section 6 of the Standards, “Cost of Attendance,” | am not aware of any
non-compliance during the year under review, and have confirmed the same with the Associate

Director for Federal Awards. More specifically, in my role as Director, | confirm the following:

# The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes was, and will
continue to be the same process utilized for all students, as determined by the Office of
Student Financial Aid;

* Mo coach or member of the Athletic Department staff has attempted to inappropriately
influence any member of the Office of Student Financial Aid in order to adjust cost of
attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related interests; and

* Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Office of Student Financial Aid

has been conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards. Maore specifically, | agree to notify the Chancellor or Chancellor’s designes of any
inappropriate communication relating to financial aid policy received from any booster or official
of the University or staff member in the Athletic Department

—— DuaS gred by

Plew Fadl 1/22/2024

Helen Faith, Director of the Office of Student Financial Aid (date)

52



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Exhibit 3

Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Violations of Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Athletics

It is understood that identifying and addressing violations in a timely manner is a characteristic of a
properly functioning compliance system—indicative of a system that is working as opposed to a system
that is malfunctioning. Violations of the Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Athletics (“Standards”)
that are properly identified and addressed in a timely manner will be accounted for in the Annual Report
within the context of demonstrating the effectiveness of the Standards. Violations that are indicative of
systemic failures of the Standards (e.g., system malfunctions) are to be reported to the conference
office within a timeframe that is contemporaneous to the time at which such failures are discovered.

Violation 1:

In January 2023, an assistant coach communicated directly with an associate dean, in violation of
institutional control standards. Specifically, the assistant coach sent an email to the associate dean to
arrange a meeting with the individual during an official visit for a transfer prospective student-athlete.
The violation was discovered during a routine post-visit review of the official visit itinerary. Upon
learning of the violation, the assistant coach expressed regret and understanding that future
communication must be routed through the appropriate channels within the Athletic Department.
Education was provided to the assistant coach regarding the importance of communicating through
these appropriate resources for issues involving student-athletes.

Violation 2:

In February 2023, a head coach communicated directly with a professor, in violation of institutional
conitrol standards. Specifically, the head coach sent an email to the professor regarding a student-
athlete who would be missing an exam in the professor's class to compete at the conference
champicnship. The violation was discovered when the Athletics Academic Advisor for the sport, who
was copied on the original email, shared the correspondence with the Assistant Athletic Director for
Academic Services. Upon learning of the violation, the head coach expressed regret and understanding
that future communication must be routed through the appropriate channels within the Athletic
Department. Education was provided to the head coach regarding the importance of communicating
through these appropriate resources for issues involving student-athletes.

53



|
Appendix J

2022-23 Summary of Big Ten & Level lll/IV NCAA Violations

11.5.1;
Women's Tennis 7/2/2022 11.5.1.1; An assistant coach recruited off-campus prior to being certified to do so.
13.1.2.1.1
Volleyball 8/25/2022 13.02.5.4; On one occ.a5|on,‘two coaches engaged in an off-campus recruiting evaluation
13.17.11 during a quiet period.
17.02.19; The Head Coach impermissibly observed and publicized voluntary athletically
Volleyball 8/7/2022 17.1.1; related activities by tweeting a photo of student-athletes engaged in practice
17.1.1.1 activities the day prior to the start of the preseason.
Volleyball 8/5/2022 13.6.3 APSA ma_de an official visit prior to being placed on the institution’s Institutional
Request List.
, N A PSA had impermissible, on-campus contact during the COVID-19 dead period
Men's Swimming 10/1/2020 13.02.5.5 with a group of current SAs at the direction of the Head Swimming & Diving Coach.
12.1.1.1.3;
Women's Rowing 9/24/2022 12.11 .1.3.15 Prior to receiving final ama}teurlsm certification, six SAs were allowed to compete
12.1.1.1.3.2; | on three dates of competition.
16.8.1
Women's Hockey 11/7/2022 13.02.5.5 A Women'’s Hockey PSA made an official visit during a dead period.
Women's Rowing 11/6/2022 17177 Eleven Women'’s Rowjng SAs were not provided with a required day off during the
final week of the sport’s fall segment.
Men's Rowing 11/9/2022 14.3.5.1; A fr_eshm_aln SA was _allowed to practlc_:e bey_o_nd _the 45-day temporary certification
14.3.5.1.1 period prior to receiving final academic certification.
Volleyball 3/28/2023 15.5.1.6; A forr_ner SA_ enrolled in graduate schc_)ol but no longer on the official squad list
156.5.2.4 practiced with the team on one occasion.
A SA engaged in student hosting duties during the exam period prohibition on
Volleyball 12/20/2022 17.1.7.2 CARA and RARA.
Men's Hockey 4/5/2023 13.02.5.5 The coaching staff had impermissible, on-campus contact during a dead period
with two transfer PSAs.
13.02.4; On one occasion, a Football Assistant Coach had in-person, off-campus contact
Football 52212023 | 1374747111 | with a PSA prior to the first permissible date.

()]
N



Appendix K

February 8, 2024

M=. Karen Walsh, President, University of Wisconsin Board of Regents
Mr. Jay O. Rothman, President, University of Wisconsin System

Yan Hize Hall

1220 Linden Drive

Madison, W1 53706

Presidents:

In connection with your oversight of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's intercollegiate athletics
program, we are confirming via this letter and supporting documents, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, the following pertaining to 2022-23.

There were no instances of any major Level | or Level Il compliance viclations. We are aware of thirteen
Lewvel Ill or Level IV secondary viclations of non-compliance with MCAA or Big Ten rules and regulations
which were reported during 2022-23.

There were no illegal acts or non-compliance with federal, state, or local law by individuals employed by
the institution or representatives of the University of Wisconsin-Madizon's athletics interests.

There are no monitoring reviews currently underway by the NCAA, law enforcement officials, or others,
except for routine audits done annually or periodically.

There are no allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting intercollegiate athletics received in
communication from employees, former employees, or others.

The institution has evaluated and updated its gender-equity plan from our previous self-study, dated
2008-2009.

We have processes in place to ensure background checks are performed on all coaches, assistant
coaches, contractors, volunteers, student employees, and any other individuals serving as an agent of the
institution related to intercollegiate athletics. These processes apply to thoze involved with offering camps
and clinics, and others who participate in activities involving children. Adverse outcomes of background
checks are evaluated by Human Resources.

We understand our fiduciary regpongibilities to act in the best interest of the institution even if it conflicts
with the immediate interests of the athletic department.

The athletic department has not intervened when a student-athlete iz being disciplined under regular
student conduct rules.

ery truly yours,

I:\,_'I.;__J’.-\__;/.-{'-. :fi r;:l,’] "-""EL/(Z'._ _-_. ﬂ%/r—

“Chancellor Athietic Director
e T R (%pzl m. O
Sr. Associate Athletic Director/SWA Astistant AD for Compliance

University of Wisconsin - Intercollegiate Athletics
Eeliner Hall - 1440 Monroe Street - Madison, Wisconsin 53711
[508) 262-18486 - wwrw.uwhbadgers.com

55



Appendix L

@ pakertilly

University of Wisconsin-Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures — Budgetary Basis

June 30, 2023

Together With Independent Auditors' Report
and Independent Accountants' Report on
Agreed-Upon Procedures
Required by the Provisions of
NCAA Bylaw 2024 17

56



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Table of Contents
June 30, 2023
Page
Independent Auditors’ Report 1
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis 3
Index to Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis 4
Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis ]
Other Reports (Unaudited)
Independent Accountants® Report on Applying Agreed-Upon
Procedures for Affiliated and Cutside Organizations 15
Exhibit A— Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations 16
Motes to Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations 17
Independent Accountants” Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures
for the University of Wisconsin—Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics 18
Exhibit B — Analysis of Major Revenue and Expenditure Accounts I

57



O bakertilly

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madizon

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures - budgetary basis of the
University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Department), for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the statement of revenues and expenditures - budgetary basis,
which collectively comprise the Athletic Department's financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects,
the revenues and expenditures of the Athletic Department as of June 30, 2023 in accordance with the
budgetary basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under thozse standards are further descrbed in the Auditors”
Responsikilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Athletic Department and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Az discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Athletic Department financial statements are intended to
present the changes in financial position that are attributable to the transactions of the Athletic Department.

The financial statements do not purport to and do not, present faifly the financial position of the University of
Wisconsin - Madison, as of June 30, 2023, the changes in its financial position or, where applicable, its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
statements are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Baker Tilly U5, LLF. trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tily Intemational Ltd., the members of which
are separate and independent legal enfities. © 2020-2022 Baker Tilly U3, LLP

1

58



Respongibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the budgetary basis of accounting described in Note 1 and for determining that the budgetary basis of
accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances.
Management is alzo responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of intermal contrel relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a matenal misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a materal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

+«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Athletic Department’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We are requirad to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Bofor. Tibly US, 127
Madizon, Wisconsin
December 22, 2023

59



£

sseg Aepbpng - sampusdys PUB SSNUSASS JO JUSLSIEIE Of SS10U 885

BLTOLE § ECLGOC ¥l § DBOcoGcz!  § lEhoest)  § Lermic Ul & (ceo bl § ZlDcokd § Cocopes  §
BEZ (20 #BE BIFEEFL BB LLOBE LEIGF SrLEETY [T TEETEG |h [IE=a)
TE0 BOF TEGEDH
EZE BT - - - - - - EZSBEVE
oo 0 | DITEED SO0aE BLLIE Fifiv) = T BLLES
BECIE® EIETETL 06T wEN mTLL REETE L g mrnl BETRRT L
e bl BEAELL BELTL e ESvE o oLgL e
LB E L¥SEENE wErn 08 oo L 2L TEELE TwEL
LELBIE LELBIEE - - - - - -
O LG R FEERZLEE PELEES BLLE DEZLLL ELEBSL B0V 543 1
SOLBLLLL BEEEECE LR 006°204 - 620 670 555520 BRSSO
066’ PET i1 g - - - - - -
L O ZriEalL SEELEE YL LelosE BB BOSEL DEE
CB0'LE5E CBOMLEG . . . . . .
L E BFEBT EZEDFE Bl LT6L LIZTRZR L0211 T LTl
YT BV E Bl BrLBEE | YIS Zo0iEl it OB ¥EE PO
TIT LEE 1L BLECE TFTINE 00" 268 BOGLZ6 565 Z00 BPETEZ T LLPUE
WF I T S0l TE L BLLBEL 5 1] &Y el PO TR EAT4-1
S0 fr LBl - - 005 Bk - B 0 - LBl LEal
L6 YT CIZTIVET CEEGIG TOTESE DESIEE s TS COTELEY
UG ES Tl o 1) BEFLEFE WFTLL EIELLF R 555 LRE Lol TS L
o 08 G FiZ DEECIFE EESETL SEEVED D6l 0o STEEEE BEORETE
O GLEE - EZSE el DEOEE ool EETE OBEEE
o S5 Bl BEFErG LR LEYE EELERL DELRLE 0L BSE BLFIED =81
Wl G2l 16F [T FLLGEFD Pl FR LT Tl G C BB ¥ Bl T
[ - - - - - [T
e BEELLEE EZ0L SOFE BLLVL 8 IEEREL
Db ErLE DELTRL G (Zw5'L) - - - - Lok
T BT T FITSEE SET LB wiTy FELVEY LEEES FEEEEL DEETH
PV EL BT DEFERLTI 006ZER E0EE LS ER L [t LAVIDLE B0 LRD'E
L DEEEREY mED Bl DB EE o] LB BTELE
SRVl L . . . . . . LEEYELL
LI BELROET - - - FESLEL BEUDL
BEE LB LEREEY ¥ELERL i e Bl FOZ B -
SR B G . . . . COELES Y EZVLET LY
15T 156 DlEELL oeres . . . oLrrL SLE0L
10 ] TEOUDLTE FIFFLL LB BT TRLWES 1h R DROTLIS'E LT
0 g - oeEL - - O 0 e -
LELBLEE LELBIEE . . .
(LzEzmes) LRETS . . . . (hee segh (L Egee o
S SE5BLL B rEOE B ETE ElEEDY e ELE BEOESE LBVEEVE
TGS § FOFTLG § LG § D0TEL § ErEES § BEEGUT § BTl § LEBNEZ %
FEL (=] ST ] RO, TREOH e R e e WEred
s | oy A A LT

BRN PSR (SR
A EBOLAR PO R

TG PR B

B BENUCG LD R LS CLL0S BULSE D Ay pusds |wog

g puesde |wog

Uy P e BLE SO0 JBE0

TR L BELE R R S

D PUE L L Y

BOUIRITEL PLE §8.04 PUBC & | EDP ey

Lo g | BLIDENYESL) EeUpLy

A D L e UL LIURE U pERLe L

a5y BRI PLE SEEE G BUAST R SRR R, ALY

sonol pos

N Lchos duEs sucds

LGOI PUE BLISWEL BLE RPN

SR I L B LUy

| TS PUIE SN s i b s o

|BARR LS |

Bupreay

USR] BB BT
EARRLA ARG PLE SLESALYT BE A0 R SREMLGG

PUE 515000 SOLEES BN ELSLILPERES Loddng
SERLLG poER pUR Amieeur) s dg

U LG PUE LS T RUEEE SRUE0 D)
EALLLIG PRUEE PLE SLESR LY AL A0 PR

SEENLOG PR e e es Buuseoo prely

e LI BTy

PFIE WS RN 8Ly

ET T ST

EENLBAR B0 ]

NG R [Wog
anusesy Butesdo e
LD | L) B L) LU LSO & P i) &0 Uy
BEOLGEAR CILED 5300
solymosuods pue suewLesmeape ‘Busueo) ey
R Lo EROUGD pUE Bunged sl weuboug
ML PR RS LSRG {00 j0 SLICENGLE P FOLRRLIn T
SUDENG LR BOLGUELID T
SUGERQUERP YDl
LA ERAY
RNy
BLID M QLELID Ty
P L) BT
RO G | BLDRPAREL LAy
LOEMLRsU 00 RIGp LR L me
b G LR EL) B
BB B
LA B

EZ0E 0E BUNT PeRUT 55,

sEeg Amefpng - seunypuscis pUE SENUBEGSH O WL B

saalY a1e1Ba)|oualU| 4O UD|S) AQ UOS| PE-UISUOIS|M 40 AISIaAN

60



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Index to Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Page
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5
Reporting Entity 5
Basis of Accounting 6
Measurement Focus 6
Capital Assets T
Compensated Absences T
Other Postemployment Benefits T
Claims and Judgmenis a
Contributions a
2. Long-Term Debt a
3. Long-Term Leases 11
4, Campus Loan 12
5. Employees' Retirement System 12
6. Commitments and Contingencies 12
7. Under Armour Contract 12
8. Related-Party Transactions 13
9, Capital Assets 13
10. Risk Management 13
11. Endowments 14
12. Suites and Tickets Given to Institution 14
13. Excess Transfers to Institution 14

61



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis has been prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAR). The budgetary basis for the University of Wisconsin-Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athletics represents the accounting principles used in managing its operations
in accordance with its budgetary procedures. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board establishes
generally accepted accounting principles for states and local govemmental units, including the University
of Wisconsin—Madison Division of Infercollegiate Athletics. The most significant differences between the
budgetary basis and GAAP (full accrual basis) are as follows:

+«  Capital asset acquisitions funded by revenues are reported as expenditures rather than as
capital assels.

«  (Capital asset acquisitions funded by debt proceeds or from the State of Wisconsin are not
reparted.

«  [Depreciation on capital assets is not reported.

«  Long-term debt proceeds are not reported as other financing sources or as a liability.

«  Principal payments on long-term debt are reported as expenditures rather than as a
reduction of a liability.

+*  In-kind contributions are reported as revenues and expenditures in the year the goods were
received or services provided to the Division of Intercollegiate Athletics.

See also hasis of accounting below.

The format of the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis is based upon the
prescribed format of the Mational Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA).

Reporting Entity

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics {the Athletic Depariment) of the University of Wisconsin-
Madison (the University) is responsible for intercollegiate sports programs of the University. The
Afhletic Director is responsible for the day to day operation of the Athletic Department. The Athletic
Department is ullimately govemed by the University's Chancellor through the authority delegated by
the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, which is part of the State of Wisconsin.

This report includes the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis of the Athletic
Department's intercollegiate sports programs. All functions related to these intercollegiate sports
programs are included.

An officially recognized booster organization has been established to aid the Athletic Depariment with
its outreach booster efforts. This organization is not a component unit of the University and is not
under the direct accounting control of the University or Athletic Depariment. As such, the
accomparying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis excludes the financial
activity of this booster organization. However, upon safisfying all donor restrictions, the accompanying
statement of revenues and expenditures — hudgetary basis includes those cash or in-kind
contributions made to the Athletic Depariment by this recognized booster organization.

The recognized booster organization for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Badger Baskethall Boosters

62



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes o Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis has been prepared on
the budgetary basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Under the budgetary basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter o be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Athletic Department considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the cument fiscal period. Significant revenues susceptible to
accrual include most operating revenues. Contributions from the recognized booster organization
generally are recorded as revenues when received in cash or inkind because they are not
measurable or available until actually received. Cash receipis from advance ficket sales related o
athlefic events io be held in the subsequent year are deferred and will be recognized as revenues
during the year the event takes place.

Expendiiures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on
long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expendiiures, which are
recorded as a liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.
Guaranteed payments to nonconference foothall opponents are reported as expendiiures. Ticket
revenue shared with conference opponents are netted against conference distributions.

Consistent with the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue and expenditures for sports camps are
recorded and included in these statements hased on a June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023 fiscal
year.

Tuition waivers are recorded as athletic student aid. The value of the Under Armour merchandise
received is reported under the sports or other team expenditure categories while revenue is recorded
under corporate sponsorships.

Measurement Focus

The measurement focus of the statement of revenues and expendiiures — budgetary basis is the flow
of current financial resources concept. Under this concept, sources and uses of financial resources,
including capital outlays funded by operating revenues and debt retirements are reflected in
operations. Resources not available to finance expenditures and commitments of the current period
are not recognized as revenue. Liabilities for claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension
contributions which will not be currently liquidated using expendable available financial resources are
not recognized as cument expenditures. These related expenditures are recognized when the
liahilities are liquidated.

63



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired for Athlefic Depariment purposes are recorded as expenditures in the
statement of revenues and expenditures — hudgetary basis when they are funded by operating
revenues. Capital assets funded by debt issued by the State of Wisconsin are recorded as
expenditures as the debt repayments are made hy the Athletic Department.

Depreciation is not reflectad in the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method and reported in Note 9.

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 20-40 years

Improvements other than bulldings 10-20 years

Equipment 515 years
Compensated Absences

Linder terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacation ime in varying amounts.
Employees are allowed to accumulate unused sick leave and vacation time and carry it forward to
future periods. The Athletic Department is charged for sick leave by the State of Wisconsin as the
sick leave is eamed. Amounts are accumulated by the State of Wisconsin in the accumulated sick
leave fund in the state's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. Therefore, no sick leave liability
exists for the Athlefic Depariment. Total vested vacation time and other compensated absences at
June 30, 2023 were $3,367 349,

Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Yested benefit liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and include salary related
payments.

Cther Postemployment Benefits

The State of Wisconsin's health insurance program, a cost-sharing multiple employer, defined benefit
plan, is an employer-sponsored program offering group medical coverage to eligible employees and
retirees of the State of Wisconsin. Under this plan, retired employees of the State are allowed to pay
the same healthcare premium as active employees creating an implicit rate subsidy for retirees. This
implicit rate subsidy, which is calculated to cover pre-age 65 refirees, is treated as an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) and results in an actuarial determined liability and expense in the
State of Wisconsin's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. Details of the plan are included in the
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of Wisconsin for the yvear ended June 30, 2023.
The liability and expense is computed for the entire State of Wisconsin and is not separately
calculated for the Athletic Department.

64



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as expenditures if all the conditions of Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. There were no significant claims or judgments at year-
end.

The Aihletic Department is a unit of a state governmental body. The Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconsin System and Athletic Depariment, as a unit of this state agency, cannot be
sued because they have governmental immunity. Claims ansing out of employment or agency
(excluding employment discimination claims) must be brought against state employees or agents
individually under § 89546 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Contributions

The Athletic Department receives contributions in support of various intercollegiate sporis programs.
Contnbutions for the Athletic Department are primarily remitted to the University of Wisconsin
Foundation (the Foundation) which is the official not-for-profit fund raising corporation for the
University of Wisconsin-Madison. Periodically, Athletic related contributions are directed to the
Liniversity instead of the Foundation. These funds are deposited in the UW System Trust Funds,
which are managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board (SWIB).

The Athletic Department applies some of the contributions for capital outlay (capital assets). Other
contributions are used to support the annual operations of the Athletic Depariment including
scholarship support. These contributions are reported as contibution revenues, which are recorded
as revenues when they are drawn from the Foundation.

2. Long-Term Debt
The State of Wisconsin has issued various general obligation bonds, portions of which were for
construction of various Athletic Department projects. Total University debt as of June 30, 2023 is
$047 328 668.

The general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Wisconsin. The Athletic
Department's share of these bonds will be retired by Athletic Department program revenues.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Athletic Depariment's debt service payments consisted of the

following:
Principal on bonds and notes $ 9,084 678
Interest on bonds and notes 4 244 442
Tatal $ 13309120
8
65



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

The following represents the unpaid balance of all long-term general obligation debt for which the Athletic
Department is financially responsible:

Average
Issue Criginal Maturity Interest Balance
Year Debt Date Rates 630723
Camp Randall
2019 § 256,884 041529 228% % 41,823
2020 3TET211 041530 2.30% 722387
2021 38,393  04N&27 5.00% 38,3583
2021 5417120 04M15/26 0.80% 375,507
2022 4370365 041543 5.00% 4 370,365
2023 1,817,104 041528 5.00% 1,817,104
Total Camp Randall 7,365,769
Mielsen Stadium
2015 TI7 0416724 5.00% 3
2021 13 D4M527 5.00% 13
Total Nielsen Stadium 16
Crew House
2020 446986 0415730 2.30% 84 197
2022 30066 0414734 5.00% 310,066
Taotal Crew House 394 263
University Ridge Golf Course
2014 62443 0414728 5.00% 36,921
2022 10,294 101723 5.00% 10,294
2022 12,970 0414728 4 86% 12,8970
Taotal University Ridge Golf
Course 60,185
HockeylSwim Facility
204 10,696 0414728 5.00% 10,696
205 276,685 04M627 5.00% 276,686
2016 938 642 101527 5.00% 728,819
2016 5819190 1017730 4 66% 842 853
207 44 250 101728 5.00% 44 250
2022 3,190,663 041141 5.00% 3,190,663
2022 1,561,742 04M16/43 h27% 1,561,742
Total Hockey/!Swim Facility 6,645,709
g
66



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Average
Issue Original Maturity Interest Balance
Year Debt Date Rates 630723

Student Athlete Performance Center
212 5 6474464 05/01/26 H00% & 1,171,608

2016 2426006 101527 5.00% 1,687,721
2016 1495866 04/16/36 4.00% 912,854
2016 1,888.621 1017725 4.00% 1,062,787
2017 2275911 1017 5.00% 2,151,942
2017 151,558  D4M16/38 5.00% 86,043
2017 290142 1017728 5.00% 299,142
2017 840,265 1017724 5.00% 660,096
2018 135511 4636 5.00% 8BTS
2019 5815130 041523 2.53% 21,599
2020 24870931 041542 2.49% 14,074.159
2021 2,396,904 041521 5.00% 2,396,994
2021 447 344 4M525 5.00% 447 344
2021 19,230 041526 0.80% 10,350
2021 8.763 041526 1.40% 8,763
2022 312,834 04M526 5.00% 236,817
2022 431,976 041532 261% 431,976
2022 8243140 04M16/43 5.00% 8,243,140
2023 21,188 0414728 5.00% 21,188

2023 4,697,239 041642 5.00% 4 697 239
Total Student Athlete

Performance Center 38 671,942
Camp Randall South End Zone {SEZ) 2020 5,671,289 04M6/M41 5.00% 5,276,143
2021 2462 650 04M16/41 5.00% 2,289.460
2021 12,248,024 04M16/42 5.00% 11,826,166
2022 RE822.226 04M6/42 4 73% 5,822 227
2022 8342213 05/01/25 5.00% 7613498
Total Camp Randall SEZ 32 837 494
Kohl Center Addition and Renovation 2021 1,633,070 0416042 5.00% 1,576,822
2022 36899353 041642 5.00% 3,689 353
2022 5,000,000 05/01725 5.00% 4 6563237
2023 2,001,894 05/03032 5.00% 2,001,894
2023 3615230 0416043 4 54% 3,615,230

Tatal Kohl Center Addition and
Renovation 15,456,536
Total 3 101,421,914

10
67



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

Future general obligation debt repayment schedule:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal years ending June 30:

2024 § 5492674 $ 4463695 & 10,956,369
2025 14,016,608 4,193,639 18,210,247
2026 3,620,442 3,483,221 7,103,663
2027 2,883,665 3,339,829 6,223,494
2028 3,362,027 3,190,246 6,552,273
2029-2033 18,837,007 13,361,670 32,198,767
2034-2038 26,410,564 8,356,330 34,766,894
2035-2043 25,798,637 2,540,388 28,339,225

Total $ 101,421,914 § 42929018  § 144,350,932

3. Long-Term Leases

The State of Wisconsin (State) established a facility in 19492 that provides lease purchase financing for
property and certain service items acquired by state agencies. This facility is the Third Amended and
Restated Master Lease between the State acting by and through the Wisconsin Department of
Administration and U.5. Bank National Association. Lease purchase ohligations under the Master Lease
are not general obligations of the State, but are payable from appropnations of State agencies
pariicipating in the Master Lease Program, subject to a separate determination. Pursuant to terms of the
Master Lease, the Trusiee for the facility issues parity Master Lease cerificates of paricipation that
evidence proportionate interest of the owners thereof in lease payments.

The leases that are the responsibility of University Ridge Golf Course are for various eguipment capital
assets with terms ranging from 48 to 60 months. Equipment under leases is included in capital assets as

follows:
Equipment under leases 5 801,844
Less accumulated depreciation 333,771
Total 5 468,073

Following is a schedule of fuiure minimum lease payments required under these leases:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal years ending June 30:

2024 5 73,629 5 10,682 5 34,311
2025 60,743 9,813 70,558
2026 49720 7,081 56,501
2027 52 237 4 564 56,501
2028 51,945 1,920 53,865
2029 43107 1,623 44 730

Total b 331,381 b 35,683 b 367 064

11

68



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

4, Campus Loan

As a result of the COVID-15 pandemic, the Athletic Department faced an operational shortfall. The
Liniversity provided an intemal loan to the Athletic Department in the amount of $20,000,000 at 0%
interest to be repaid over six years. The fotal cutstanding intermal loan amount as of June 30, 2023 is
$15,670,000.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Athletic Depariment's internal loan principal payments totaled
$3,330,000.

The following represents the unpaid balance of the intemal loan for which the Athletic Depariment is
financially responsible:

Principal
Fiscal years ending June 30:
2024 $ 3,000,000
2025 3,330,000
2026 4 670,000
2027 4 670,000
Total $ 15,670,000

5. Employees' Retirement System

All eligible Athletic Depariment employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System), a
cost-sharing defined benefit multiple-employer public employes retirement system (PERS).

All permanent employess expected to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to participate in the
System. Covered employees are required by statute to contribute 6.55% of their salary to the plan.

Details of the plan are included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of Wisconsin
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

6. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Athletic Department is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings.
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of
management and the Legal Affair's Office that the likelinood is remote that any such claims or
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Athletic Depariment's statement of revenues and
expenditures — budgetary basis.

7. Under Armour Contract
A 10-year contract with Under Armour, Inc. was entered into effective July 1, 2016. During each contract
year, Under Armour shall be the exclusive supplier of athletic footwear and apparel to UW Intercollegiate

Athletic teams and Under Armour shall provide compensation in the form of goods, services and
monetary contributions to benefit the University, Athletic Department and the Madison community .

12

69



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

8. Related-Party Transactions
The University provides various administrative and accounting services to the Athletic Depariment. The
cost of these services is charged to the Athletic Department. In addition, the Foundation provides varous
administrative and accounting senvices to the Athlefic Depariment. The Athletic Department pays the
Foundation for these costs.

9. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
Tio1522 Additions Deductions 630723
Land $ 10,651,178 $ - 5 - % 10,651,178
Buildings and fixtures 358,126, 866 57.327 871 - 445 454 737
Construction in progress 50,322,772 19,693,030 40,988,504 29,027,298
Improvements other than buildings 20,072,898 225,000 - 20,297,898
Equipment 17,629,334 1,220,360 106,071 18,943,623
Total capital assets 487,003,048 78,466,261 41,094 575 524 374,734
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and fixtures 160,171,788 11,114,801 - 171,286,589
Improvements other than
buildings 11,258,754 313,133 - 11,571,887
Equipment 13,590,909 1,348,134 106,071 14,832,972
Total accumulated
depreciation 185,021,451 12.776,068 106,071 197 591,448
Capital assets, net of
depreciation $ 301,981,597 $ 326,683,286

The total Athletic Departiment related capital projects expenditures for the year are 520,503,092,

10. Risk Management

The Athletic Depariment participates in the State of Wisconsin's Risk Management Fund. It is the general
policy of the State not to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses to which it is exposed.
Instead, the State manages its risks internally and sets aside assets for claim settlement in its Risk
Management Fund. The fund services most claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed, including
damage to State owned property, liability for property damages and injuries o third pariies and worker's
compensation.

In addition, the Athletic Department participates in the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds.
The Wisconsin Department of Emplayes Trust Funds operates four public entity risk pools: health
insurance, group income continuation insurance, protective occupation duty disability insurance and
long-term disability insurance. Information regarding these risk pools can be found in the State's Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report.

13

70



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2023

11. Endowments

As of June 30, 2023, the total value of the Athletic Department’s dedicated endowments being held at the
Foundation for the year is $133,121,301. As provided in a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Foundation, the Athletic Department will draw funds from the Foundation as needed and approved to
finance expenditures of the Athletic Department. The total value of University endowments as of June 30,
2023 is 54,922 395 053.

As of June 30, 2023, the total value of the Athletic Department's dedicated endowments being held in
LW System Trust Funds for the year is 52,286,743,

12. Suites and Tickets Given to University
In fiscal year 2022-23, the Athletic Department contributed $541,285 to the University in the form of event
tickets, suite access and parking for events. The Athletic Department also waived donation requirements
in the amount of $217,2080 for suites, premium seating and parking.

13. Excess Transfers to Institution
Faor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Athletic Department transferred $3,780,631 to the Institution

in excess of those funds allowed to be reported within the Less — Transfers to Institution category on the
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis.

14

71



OTHER REFPORTS (UNAUDITED)

72



@ bakertilly

Independent Accountants' Report on Applying Agreed-Upon
Procedures for Affiliated and QOutside Organizations

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the University of
Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Department) and the National Collegiate
Athletic Association (the NCAA), solely to assist you with respect to complying with MCAA Bylaw 20,24 17 for
the year ended June 30, 2023. The University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics is
responsible for compliance with the requirements of NCAA Bylaw 20.2 4 17 for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Athletic Department has agreed fo and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to
meet the intended purpose of the engagement of complying with NCAA Bylaw 20.2 .4 17. Additionally, the
Athletic Depariment and the NCAA have agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet their purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all of the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of
all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed
are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures we performed are summarnized as follows:

a. We obtained a list of recognized booster organizations (organizafions) and related statements of
changes in cash of recognized organizations presented in Exhibit A for the year ended June 30,
2023 . No audit procedures were performed on these statements in connection with our audit of the
Statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis.

b, 'We confirmed with the appropriate office of the recognized booster organizations the cash receipts
and disbursements of the organizations for the year ended June 30, 2023 as shown in Exhibit A

The results of these procedures are summarized in the following Statement of changes in cash of recognized
hooster organizations.

We were engaged by the Athletic Department to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged fo and did not, conduct an audit or review engagement,
the ohjective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, an the
accompanying Statement of changes in cash of recognized booster organizations for the yvear ended June 30,
2023. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are requirad to be independent of the Athletic Department and fo meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon-procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Chancellor, management of the Athletic
Depariment or an authorzed representative of the NCAA and is not intended to be and should not be, used
lvy anyone other than these specified parties.

5@ 7”_4%: us, LLF

Baker Tilly U5, LLF, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tily International Ltd., the members of which
are separate and independent legal entities. © 2020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP

15

73



9l

susieziueiio seso0g peziubosal Jo ysed W seBUBYD JO JUSLISIE]S O] S8j0U
puE suone zuelo soEine pue pelEyE o ssinpesad vodnpsabe Suidde Uo Lodss SIUBJUNCIOE jJuspUEdaDUT B85

LER'LEL §  (555'eLL) & - $  S00'Es) 4 - 4 LBEZT ) 4 2oL
LER'LEL § (556l 3 - & S00'Es) 4 - 4 1BEZT ) 3 sizsoog |leqieyseg Jebpeg
aoueeqg uonenuebig SIE|YIY JO sydianay uonEpunod aoueeq
Ysen Jaysoog Jo Jeyag ug Ysen (o) Jjwoay YseD
Buipugz jeyeg ug saJmipuadxy Jssoog Slaysuel ) BuiuwBag
sanypuadxg anuaaay

£Z0Z 0 2uUnf papul Jes )
m____u;mu_:mm_o Jsisoog umn_cm.uam._..,_ Jo yseg ul mmmcm:u Jo B ES

LRISIEEE

Sonalyly 2)e1ba||024aju] JO UOISIAIQ UOSIPEN-UISUOISIA JO ANSJaAIUN

74



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations
Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Cash Receipts

Cash receipts represent funds deposited by recognized hooster organizations in their checking accounts
during their fiscal year. These amounts are proceeds from club activities. Individual gifts made in suppaort
of parficular sports are made directly to the University of Wisconsin Foundation and, therefore, are not
reflected as a booster organization receipt in the Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster
Organizations. These amounts are recognized as revenues when they are transferred to the Athletic

Department.
2. Expenditures
Cash disbursements are made by the recognized booster organizations for various purposes.
The Athletic Department may expend funds from specific Foundation funds to assist support organizations

in their club activiies. These amounts are included in the Athletic Department's Statement of revenues and
expenditures — budgetary basis.

17

75



@ bakertilly

Independent Accountants' Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures for the
University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the University of
Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Department) and the National
Collegiate Athletic Association (the NCAA), solely to assist you with respect to complying with NCAA
Bylaw 20.2 4 17 for the year ended June 30, 2023. The University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of

Intercollegiate Athletics is responsible for compliance with the requirements of NCAA Bylaw 20.2.4.17 for
the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Athletic Department has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to
meet the intended purpose of the engagement of complying with NCAA Bylaw 20.2.4.17. Additionally, the
Athletic Depariment and the NCAA have agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet their purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all of the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of
all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed
are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures we performed and the associated findings are summarized as follows:
Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures for Revenues
General
« We compared and agreed each operating revenue category reported in the Statement of
Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis (Statement) during the reporting period to
supporting schedules provided by the Athletic Department. If a specific reporting category was
less than 4.0% of the total revenues, no procedures were required for that specific categony.

+ e compared and agreed a sample of operating revenue receipts obtained from the above
operating revenue supporting schedules to supporting documentation.

« We compared each major revenue account over 10% of the total revenues to prior period
amounts and budget estimates. We obtained an explanation from management of any varations
greater than 10%.

Mo findings were noted. See Exhibit B for explanation of variations greater than 10%.

The above referenced testing included the following procedures for specific revenue sources:
Ticker Sales

* We compared tickets sold during the reporting period, complimentary tickets provided during the

reporting period, and unsold tickets to the related revenue reported by the Athletic Depariment in
the statement and the related attendance figures and recalculated iotals.

Mo findings were noted.

Baker Tilly U5, LLF, frading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd_, the members of which
are separate and independent legal enfities. © 2020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP

18

76



Student Fees
+« There were no student fees reported on the Statement, no procedures were performed.

Direct State or Other Govermmental Support

+« There was no direct state or other governmental support reporied on the Statement, no
procedures were performed.

Direct Institutional Support

+ Total direct institufional support reported on the Staterment was less than 4% of total revenues, no
procedures were required to be performed.

Transfers 1o Instutution

« Total transfers to institution reported on the Statement was less than 4% of tofal revenues, no
procedures were required to be performed.

Indirect Instututional Support

« Total indirect institutional support reported on the Staterment was less than 4% of total revenues,
no procedures were required to be performed.

Guaraniees

+« Total guaraniees reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total revenues, no procedures
were required to be performed.

Contributions
« e requested information regarding any contributions of monies, goods or services received
direcly by the Athletic Department from any affiliated or outside organization, agency or group of
individuals (two or more) not included above (e.g., contributions by corporate sponsors) that
constitutes 10% or more in aggregate for the reporting year of all contributions received for

intercollegiate athletics duning the reporting periods. We obtained supporting documentation for
each contribution and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
In-Kind

+  Total in-kind reporied on the Statement was less than 4% of total revenues, no procedures were
required to be performed.

Compensation and Benefits Provided by a Third-Party

+« There were no compensation and benefits provided by a third party reporied on the Statement,
no procedures were performed.

19

77



Media Rights
« \We obtained and inspected agreements explaining the Athletic Department’s total media
(broadcast, television, radio) rights received by the Athletic Department or through the Big 10
conference offices as reported in the statement.

+ e compared and agreed the media right revenues to a summary statement of all media rights
identified, if applicable, and the Athletic Depariment general ledger and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
NCAA Distributions

«  Total NCAA Distributions reported on the Statement was less than 4% of total revenues, no
procedures were reguired to be performed.

Conference Distributions and Conference Distributions of Foothall Bow! Generated Revenue
« e obtained and inspected agreements related to the Athletic Department's conference
distributions and participation in revenues from toumaments during the reporting period for
relevant terms and conditions.

« We compared and agreed the related revenues to the Athletic Depariment's general ledger
and/or the Staterment and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Program Sales, Concessions, Novelty Sales and Parking

+« Total program sales, concessions, novelty sales and parking were less than 4% of total revenues,
no procedures were reguired to be performed

Royalties, Licensing, Advertisements and Sponsorships
« e obtained and inspected agreements related fo the Athletic Department’s participation in
revenues from royalties, licensing, adverisements and sponsorships during the reporting period
for relevant terms and conditions.

« We compared and agreed the related revenues to the Athletic Depariment's general ledger
and/or the Statement and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Sports Camp Revenues

+« Total sports camp revenues reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total revenues, no
procedures were reguired to be performed.

Arhletics Restricted Endowiment and Investument Income

+« Total athletics restricted endowment and investiment income reported on the Statement was less
than 4% of total revenues, no procedures were required fo be performed.

78



Other

+«  Total other revenues reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total revenues, no
procedures were required to be performed.

Foothall Bowl Revenues

+«  Total foothall bowl revenues reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total revenues, no
procedures were required to be performed.

Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures for Expenditures

General

« We compared and agreed each expendifure category reported in the Statement during the
reporiing period to supporting schedules provided by the Athletic Department. If a specific
reparting category was less than 4.0% of the total expenditures, no procedures were required for
ihat specific categaory.

« We compared and agreed a haphazardly selected sample of 25 expenditures obtained from the
Statement to supporting documentation.

« e compared each major expenditure account over 10% of the total expenditures to prior period
amounts and budget estimates. We obtained an explanation from management of any vanations
greater than 10%.
Ma findings were noted. See Exhibit B for explanation of variations greater than 10%.
The above referenced testing included the following procedures for specific expenditure categories:
Athletic Student Aid

+ e haphazardly selected a sample of 60 students from the listing of instituional student aid
recipients during the reporiing penod.

« We obtained individual student account detail for each selection and compared total aid
allocated from the related aid award letter to the student's account.

« We compared information for each student selected for consistency with information entered
into the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System using the citena specified by the
NCAA.

« We recalculated totals for each sport and overall.
Ma findings were noted.

Guaraniees

+« Total guarantees reported on the Staterment were less than 4% of total expenditures, no
procedures were required to be performed.

21

79



Coaching Salaries, Benefits and Bonuses Paid by the University and Related Entities

+ e obtained and inspected a listing of coaches employed by the Athletic Depariment and related
entities during the reporting period. We selected a sample of ten coaches' contracts including
foothall and men's and women's baskethall from the listing.

« We compared and agreed the financial terms and conditions of each selection to the related
coaching salaries, benefits and bonuses recorded by the Athletic Department and related
entities in the Statement during the reporiing perod.

« We obtained and inspected payroll summary registers for the repaorting year for each
selection. We compared and agreed payroll summary registers from the reporting period to
the related coaching salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Athletic Department and
related entities expenditures recorded by the Athletic Department in the Statement during the
reporting period.

+ We compared and agreed the tofals recorded to any employment confracts executed for the
sample selected and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
Coaching Other Compensartion and Benefits Paid by a Third Party

« There were no coaching other compensation and benefits paid by a third party reported on the
Statement, no procedures were performed.

SupporT StafffAdministrative Compensation, Benefits, and Bonuses Paid by the University and
Refared Entities

« We haphazardly selected a sample of 25 support stafffadministrative personnel employed by the
Athletic Department and related enfities during the reporting period.

« We obtained and inspected reporting period summary payroll registers for each selection. We
compared and agreed related summary payroll registers to the related support staff
administrative salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Athletic Department and related
entities expenditure recorded by the Athletic Department in the Staternent during the
reporting period and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Support StafffAdministrative Compensation, Benefits, and Bonuses Paid by a Third Party

+ There were no support stafffadministrative compensation, benefits, and bonuses paid by a third
party reported on the Statement, no procedures were performed.

Severance Paymenis

+ \We obtained a detail listing of employess receiving severance payments by the Athletic
Department during the reporting period and agreed each severance payment made to the
sampled employees with the termination letter or employment contract and recalculated the
totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Recruiting
+  Total recruiting expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total expenditures,

no proceduras were reguired to be performed.
22

80



Team Travel
« e obtained a copy of the Athletic Department’s team travel policies.
« We compared and agreed to existing institutional and NCAA related policies

+ e obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported and
recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Spors Equipment, Uniforms and Supplies

+« Total sports equipment, uniforms and supplies expenditures reporied on the Statement were less
ihan 4% of tofal expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Game Expenditures

+ Total game expenditures reporied on the Statement were less than 4% of tofal expenditures, no
procedures were reguired to be performed.

Fund Raising, Marketing and Promotion

+« Total fund raising, marketing and promation expendifures reported on the Statement were less
than 4% of total expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Sports Camp Expenditures

+« Total sports camp expenditures reporied on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Spirit Groups

+  Total spirit groups expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Arthletic Faciliies Debt Service, [ eases and Remal Fees
+ We obtained a listing of debt senvice schedules, lease payments and rental fees for athletics
facilities for the reporiing year. We compared a sample of six facility payments including the top
two highest facility payments to additional supporting documentation {e.g., debt financing
agreements, leases, rental agreements).

« We compared amounts recorded to amounts listed in the general ledger detall and recalculated
totals.

Ma findings were noted.
Direct Overhead and Administrative Expenditures
« e obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported. We
haphazardly selected a sample of 18 fransactions to validate the existence of the transaction and
accuracy of recording and recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.

23

81



Indirect Institutional Support

+« Total indirect insfitutional support reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Medical Expenditures and Insurance

+«  Total medical expenditures and insurance reported on the Statement were less than 4% of fotal
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Memberships and Dues

+« Total membership and dues expenses reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Other Operating Expenditures

+« Total other operating expendiiures reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Stdent-Athlete Meals (non-travel)

+« Total student-athlete meals (non-travel) expenditures reported on the Statement were less than
4% of total expenditures, no procedures were reguired to be performed.

Football Bow! Expenditures

+«  Total football bowl expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4% of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Additional Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures

« We compared and agreed the sports sponsored reported in the NCAA Membership Financial
Reporting System fo the squad lists of the Athletic Depariment.

« We compared current year Grants-in-Aid revenue distribution equivalencies to prior year reported
equivalencies per the Membership Financial Report Form. We inquired and documented an
explanation for anmy variance greater than +- 4%.

« We obtained the Athletic Department's Sports Sponsorship and Demographics Forms Report for the
reporting yvear between May and August and compared the countable NCAA sports reported to the
minimum requirements st forth in Bylaw 20.10.6.3 for the number of contests and the number of
pariicipants in each contest that is counted toward meeting the minimum-contest requirement. We
compared what the Athletic Department reparted for these sports as countable, for revenue
disfribution purpasas, within the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System to the Sporis
Sponsorships and Demographics Forms report.

« We compared current year number of Sports Sponsored to prior yvear reporied total per the
Membership Financial Report submission. We inquired and documented an explanation for any
varnance.

« We agreed the total number of Division | student-athletes who, during the academic year, received a
Pell Grant award and the total value of these Pell Grants reporied in the NCAA Membership Financial

Reporting Systemn o a report, generated out of the Athletic Department’s financial aid records, of all
student-athlete Pell Grants.

24

82



« We compared current year Pell Grants total to prior vear reported fotal per the Membership Financial
Report submission. We inguired and documented an explanation for any vanance greater than +/- 20
grants.

Ma findings were noted.

Supplemental Agreed-Upon Procedures

« We selected a sample of 25 operating expenditures to compare to supporting documentation for
University of Wisconsin Foundation disbursements on behalf of the Athletic Department.

Ma findings were noted.

« We obtained the Athletic Department’s schedule of capital assets, including additions and delefions
summarized by type.

Ma findings were noted.

« We obtained support for and disclosed the source of funds, goods and services, as well as the value
associated with individual contributions of monies, goods of senvices received directly by the Athletic
Department from any affiliated or outside organization within the notes to the financial statements if
they exceedead 10% of all contributions.

We performed this procedure and determined that there were no significant contributions meeting this

criteria. Therefore, no disclosure was included in the notes to the Statement of Revenues and

Expenditures — Budgetary Basis.

Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures Program for Other Reporting ltems
Excess Transfers o Insttution
« e obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported. We
haphazardly selected a sample of four fransactions to validate the existence of the transactions
and accuracy of recording and recalculated totals.
Ma findings were noted.
Conference Realignment Expenditures

+  There were no conferznce realignment expenditures reporied on the Statement, no procedures
were performed.

Toral Athletics Related Debt

« e obtained repayment schedules for all outstanding intercollegiate athletics debt during the
reparting period and recalculated annual maturities.

« e agreed the total annual maturities and total cutstanding athletic related debt to suppaorting
documentation and the Athletic Department's general ledger.

Ma findings were noted.
Toral Institutional Debr

« e agreed the total outstanding institutional debt to supporting documentation and the
institution's audited financial statements, if available or the institution's general ledger.

Ma findings were noted.
25

83



Value of Athletics Dedicared Endowimenis

« We obtained a schedule of all athletics dedicated endowments maintained by athletics, the
institution and affiliated organizations and agreed the fair market value in the schedule(s) to
supporting documentation, the general ledger(s) and audited financial statements, if available.

Ma findings were noted.

Value of Institutional Endowments

« We agreed the total fair market value of institutional endowments fo supporting documentation,
the institution's general ledger andfor audited financial statements, if available.

Mo findings were noted.
Toral Athletics Relared Capital Expenditures

+« We obtained a schedule of athletics related capital expenditures made by athletics, the institution
and affiliated organizations during the reparting period.

* \We obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported. We selected
capital asset additions greater than $25,000 and reconciled the recorded costs to supporting
documentation. We recalculated totals.

Ma findings were noted.

We were engaged by the Athletic Department to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not, conduct an audit or review engagement,
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the analysis of
major revenue and expenditure accounts with variations greater than ten percent. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or caonclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are requirad to be independent of the Athletic Department and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical reguirements related o our agreed-upon-procedures engagement.

This repart is intended solely for the information and use of the Chancellor, management of the University of

Wisconsin and Athletic Department or an authonzed representative of the NCAA and is not intended to he
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified pariies.

5@ 7254 us, L1F

84



ie

SO G1EIDaJoIGIU) JO USTSTAI UOSIDEN-UISUOISIY JO ASieaiun eyl o) seinpesosd uoon-peeibe Suddde uo podas SJUBJUNOSSE JUeDUsdapul 665

Bupodal yyan o) pejussad saucBiees ssoy) Wl ep ey spun Ag si2Bpng sgaUly sleBaoaBiu| 1D LOSING UESIPEN-ISUCOSIA 1D AjRIsun By ) .,
‘SRINPeo0l uodr-pesifiy WNWILLY 815 UILDM pBUYSP 5y .

40015
safueyo suoyda)a) pue '(YOOZE) alesa Jof sjEualELW (¥D0SE) seaues
aonod ‘(Yepat) seseyund juswdinbs oapia O] pajES Slam S8SESIIU|
Bunews 2y Bupess suoz pu3 yInog =) jo Jno-@s e Bulaaiyoe 1oy

snuog [Emoenues e Buwes spusfis fquaaip Dagio an) spusiisn o
piEd WE 1§ 4O SSESIDUI UE SEM 2JaY) 'A||EUCIPDY SOURINSU| Y S80S
paz|enuad 1oy Buyig sndwes woy 1§ o SSESIIU| UE SEM SIS |

ELSTIF'SES

0021908

sasuadxa
SAlJEISIUILIDE DUE DESLSAD D&l

‘sas0dind uonguajad 1o}

Aed yeis vl seseaou) Jayio Buipnioul seuees Juspn)s pue 317 0} peiER)
aam seseasou) Buluiewsas sy | €2 A4 Y 2oussaud dwed paseasoul

) @np saUREs dWED Ul YOSTE 10 SSES0U UB SEM alay) ' Buonppy
‘JElS meu uc Buibulg usy) puE YEIS PIO 1oy SBSESDU O 8N T 1

Aq peseaou Jels |[Bqood ‘EZAd Jo) WE 2§ Suem seseaiaul Aed yaig

BLF'9S0 LES

L66'SFZGES

ssu=

pelej@ pue Aisianun sy Ag

PIEd S@SNU0g PUE SSUS] ‘SSUE|ES
anjensiuLpE s poddng

"UCHEPUNCS &3 18 spun) pajEubisap s Juawpedag

SRS YN B Woy smeip puciippe Bulinbar ‘Aysiaaun 2y yBnosy
Buisa) YIeoo pesy S) o) $1509 uoliSuRS o Wi 1E Asiewxaidde

o} pa| yes Buyoeco ||Bgioo) ay) jo uaiysued ay) 'KBuoDpy HERES)
wawdinbg capa, pue '(WSE L) 10D Buood teued oy (WZE)

[IFYS (NG FE) 2oz pu3 yines (LSl 18maD Yoy 24) o) pejesl
SMEID B581 1 "SI B|UIY JO WBUSg Y] JO) UONEPUNOL AN BU) Ag perlEos)
uaaq DEY 1Y) SPUny JO JUNCLE DSSESIDUl UE U0 Maup Jusupedag
ah2yly 8y} 'spoeloud 1eyjo pue ‘Yels meu 'sjsod |B)ded pesealdu) o) ang

FZO0'F00' L%

851 'E£8'05%

suogngUIueD)

‘BNpay2s awoy awet uanes |e2di] B

sEM 1YL 'EZAd Ul ZZA UL WS Aelewxoidde Uom sem jey) nuans)
1o Buneys sjooyss ylog o pe| sweg son yim uswssibe eyl 1702
1O (B} S Ul plE JSIpog 18 pley sem jeY) aweb sweg anon sYl yim
ZzAd ul aweb awoy, Bqi0o4 yybe ue pey uawpedag 28y 2y L

E60'LLL'BES

0ZZ's9.'tes

so|es jaydl |

suoneuedxg

|enjoy Jolg

pajebpng

[EN3IOY JUaUnsDy

UNoI0Y almipuedxgjenusasy

£20E '0F sunp

sjuncooy ainypuadxd pue anuassy Jolep jo sisfeuy - g gy

sana|yly @)e1ba)021a)u] JO UOISIAI] UOSIPEN-UISUCISIN 4O AjISIaaiun

85



@ pakertilly

Reporting and insights
from 2023 audit:
University of Wisconsin-Madison

Division of Intercollegiate
Athletics

June 30, 2023




Executive summary

December 22, 2023

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Athletic Department for the year ended
June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2023. This letter presents
communications required by our professional standards.

Your audit should provide you with confidence in your financial statements. The audit was performed
hased on information obtained from meetings with management, data from your systems, knowledge of
your Aihletic Department’s operating environment and our risk assessment procedures. We stnive to
provide you clear, concise communication throughout the audit process and of the final resulis of our
audit.

Additionally, we have included information on key risk areas the Athletic Department should be aware of
in your strategic planning. We are available to discuss these risks as they relate to your organization's
financial stahility and future planning.

If you have questions at any point, please connect with ws:

« Andrea.Jansen, Partner: andrea janseng@bakertilly.com or +1 (608) 240 2338

= .lohn Rader, Managing Director: john radergbakertillv com or +1 (608) 240 2431
Sincerely,

Bake['{”w Us, LLP

e

CX&}LM_-%L— S
i

Andrea Jansen, CPA, CFE

ot

John Rader, CPA, MBA

THIES COMMUNICATION I INTENDED E0LELY FOR THE INFORMATION AND UEE OF THOEE CHARGED WITH GOVERMANCE, AND, IF AFPROPRIATE,
MANAGEMENT, AND I8 NOT INTENDED TC BE AND EHIULD MOT BE UEED BY ANYONE OTHER THAN THESE SPECIFIEED PARTIEE.

BAKERTILLY US, LLF, TRADING AS BAKER TILLY, |5 A MEMEER OF THE GLIOBAL NETWORN OF BAKER TILLY INTERMATIONAL LTD., THE MEMIBERS OF WHICH
ARE EEFARATE AND INDEFENDENT LEGAL ENTITIES.

87



Responsibilities

Our responsibilities
As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include:

Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.

Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. Included in that assessment is a consideration of the Athletic Department’s intemal control over

financial reporting.

Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment.

Evaluating the approprateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management.

Forming and expressing an apinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements

prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with govemnance:

« Are free from material misstatement

«  Present fairy, in all material respects and in accordance with the budgetary basis of accounting
described in Mote 1 to the financial statements, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with govermnance of their responsibilities.

We are also required to communicate significant matiters related to our audit that are relevant to the
responsibiliies of those charged with govemance, including:

Internal control matiers

Clualitative aspects of the Athletic Department’s accounting practice including policies, accounting
estimates and financial statement disclosures

Significant unusual transactions

Significant difficulties encountered

Disagreements with management

Circumstances that affect the form and content of the auditors’ report
Audit consuliations outside the engagement team

Corrected and uncomected misstatements

Other audit findings or issues

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 3

88



Audit status

Significant changes to the audit plan

There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and
other areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 4

89



Audit approach and results

Planned scope and timing

Audit focus

Based on our understanding of the Athletic Department and environment in which you operate, we
focused our audit on the following key areas:

« [Key transaction cycles

« Areas with significant estimates

« Areas of complexity including various revenue sources and decentralized financial operations

Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality
in the context of our audit was determined basad on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined
with our expectations about the Athletic Department's cument year results.

Key areas of focus and significant findings

Significant risks of material misstatement

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, requires special audit consideration. Within our audit, we focused on the following
areas below.

Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion
Management override of Incorporate unpredictability into Procedures identified provided
controls audit procedures, emphasize sufficient evidence for our audit
professional skepticism and opinion
utilize audit team with industry
expertise
Improper revenue recognition Confirmation or validation of Procedures identified provided
due to fraud certain revenues supplemented sufficient evidence for our audit

with detailed predictive analyiics  opinion
hased on non-financial data
Other areas of emphasis

We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk but were determined
to require specific awareness and a unique audit response.

Foundation Investments Revenues Camps
Payroll and related long-term Long-term debt including Financial repaorting and required
obligations leases disclosures
Capital assets Operating expendiiures Student aid
2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Fage | 5
90



Internal control matters

We considered the Athletic Department’s intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements. We are not
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Athletic Depariment’s intemal control.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intermal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nomal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and comect misstaterments on a timely basis.

A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the enfity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and comected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemnal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | &

91



Required communications

Cualitative aspect of accounting practices

Accounting policies: Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting
policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letier, we have advised management about
the approprateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the Athletic Department are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in
Maote 1, no new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing accounting policies
was not changed duning fiscal year 2023. We noted no transactions entered into by the Athletic
Depariment during the year for which accounting policies are controversial or for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in practice.

Accounting estimates: Accounting estimates, including fair value estimates, are an integral part of the
financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and
experience about past and cumrent events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements, the
degree of subjectivity involved in their development and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expecied. The following estimates are of most
significance to the financial statements:

Baker Tilly's conclusions
regarding reasonableness
Depreciation Evaluate estimated useful life Reasonable in relation to the
of the asset and original financial statements as a whole
acquisition value
Liility costs Evaluation of information Reasonable in relation to the
provided by Faciliies Planning  financial statements as a whole.
and Management

There have been no significant changes made by management o either the processes used o
develop the particulary sensitive accounting estimates, or to the significant assumptions used o
develop the estimates, noted above.

Financial statement disclosures: The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent
and clear.

Significant unusual transactions

There have been no significant transactions that are outside the nomal course of business for the
Athletic Depariment or that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their fiming, size or nafure.

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management and completing our audit.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 7

92



Disagreements with management
Professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to
our satisfaction, conceming a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to

the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Audit report
There have been no departures from the auditors’ standard report.
Audit consultations outside the engagement team

We encountered no difficult or contentious matters for which we consulted outside of the engagement
team.

Uncorrected misstatements and corrected misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the

audit, other than those that are frivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
There were no misstatements identified.

Other audit findings or issues
We encountered no other audit findings or issues that require communication at this time.

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Athletic Depariment’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurmed in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Other information in documents containing audited basic financial statements

NCAA submissions

The Athletic Department's audited financial statements will be submitted to the NCAA. Our responsibility
for this information does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the audit report, and we
are not required to perform any procedures to cormroborate such other information. Also included in the
hound document is the statement of changes in cash of recognized booster organizations, and analysis of
major revenue and expenditure accounts. We have not audited these documents and our responsibilities
are addressed in the Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures.

Management’'s consultations with other accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing or accounting matters.

Written communications between management and Baker Tilly

The attachments include copies of other material written communications, including a copy of the
management representation letter.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | B

93



Compliance with laws and regulations

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations during our audit.

Fraud

We did not identify any known or suspected fraud during our audit.

Going concern

Pursuant to professional standards, we are required to communicate to you, when applicable, certain
matters relating to our evaluation of the Athletic Depariment’s ability to continue as a going concemn for a
reasonable period of time but no less than 12 months from the date of the financial statements, including
the effects on the financial statements and the adequacy of the related disclosures, and the effects on the
auditor's report. Mo such matters or conditions have come to our attention during our engagement.
Independence

We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly and the Athletic Department that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

Related parties

We did not have any significant findings or issues arise during the audit in connection with the Athletic
Depariment’s related parties.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | B

94



Audit committee resources

Yisit our resource page for regulatory updates, trending challenges and opportunities in your industry and
ather timely updates.

Visit the resource page at hittps Awww bakerdilly cominsights/audit-committee-resource-page.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 10

95



Management representation letter

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 11

96



December 22, 2023

Baker Tilly US, LLP

4207 Innovate Lane

P.O. Box 7358

Madison, Wl 53707-7398

Dear Baker Tilly US, LLF:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures-Budgetary Basis of the University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate
Athletics for the year ended June 30, 2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis presents fairly, in all
material respects, the revenues and expenditures of the University of Wisconsin Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, in conformity with the budgetary basis of accounting. We
confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the previously mentioned
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis in conformity with the budgetary
basis of accounting. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies,
establishing and maintaining internal control and preventing and detecting fraud.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
ltems are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that
the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or
influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily
small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to
you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement letter dated August 23, 2018.

2. The financial statements referred to above are presented in conformity with the
budgetary basis of accounting, which is an other comprehensive basis of accounting.
This basis of accounting is not in accordance with accounting principlas generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have engaged you to advise usin
fulfilling that responsibility.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |
UwBadgers.com

97




10.

11.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, if any, are
reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements and guarantees, and amounts receivable from
or payable to related parties have been appropriately accountad for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of the budgetary basis of accounting.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No other events,
including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the financial
statement date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to
or disclosure in the aforemantioned financial statements.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements

All known audit and bookkeeping adjustments have been included in our financial
statements, if any, and we are in agreement with those adjustments.

We are not aware of any known actual, possible, pending or threatenad litigation,
claims or assessments or unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be
recorded or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the budgetary
basis of accounting, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims
or assessments.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University of Wisconsin-
Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |

UWwWBadgers.com

98




Information Provided

Other

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18,

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as financial
records and related data, documentation and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Athletic Board and Finance Committee or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
preparad.

We have not completed an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity that has
not been disclosed involving:

a. Management,

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal contraol, or

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud that has not
been disclosed affecting the entity received in communications from employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We have no knowledge of known instances of noncompliance or suspected
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements
or abuse, whaose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

There have been no communications from the NCAA or other regulating agencies
concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |

UwWBadgers.com

99




15.

20,

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identifiad to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other
studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have
been implemented.

We are responsible for compliance with the federal and state laws, regulations and
provisions of contracts and debt agreements applicable to us; and we have
identified and disclosed to you all federal and state laws, regulations and provisions
of contracts and debt agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities.

There are no -

a. Violations or possible violations of provisions of contracts, federal and state laws
or regulations and any related debt covenants whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a
loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance, except those already
disclosed in the financial statements, if any.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accounted
for or disclosed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

The University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics has
satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics has
complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effact on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance.

The financial statements include all relataed organizations.
Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable,

depreciated as disclosed in the Motes to the Statement of Revenueas and
Expenditures — Budgetary Basis.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |

UwBadgers.com

100




27. With respect to your engagement to apply agreed-upon procaduras as
identified by the MNational Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the supplemental procedures
agreed to by the University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of
Intarcollagiate Athletics {Athletic Department), we confirm to the best of

our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your engagement:

a. We are responsible for the financial and NCAA compliance-related
data of the Athletic Department.

b. As of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, the Statement of
Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis is prasentad in
accordance with NCAA guidelines.

C. The Chancellor's office of the University of Wisconsin- Madison and
the Athletic Department’s management selected the criteria. We are
responsible for determining that such criteria are appropriate for our
purposes.

d. We have disclosed to you all known matters related to
noncompliance (if any) with NCAA reporting guidelines.

€. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory
agencies, internal auditors and other independent practitioners or
consultants and others affecting the Athletic Departmeant and NCAA
reporting.

f.  Woe have provided you with access to all records that we believe are
relevant to our compliance with the NCAA.

g. We have responded fully to all inquirias made to us by you during
the engagement.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |
UwBadgers.com

101




Sincerely,

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON DIVISION
OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

—— Dncusigned ty

r e o
Signed: - _
Chris Mcintosh
Athletic Director
Aetare Eatees
Signed: [ _

Adam Barnes
Senior Associate Athletic Director-Business Operations

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 6082621866 |
UwWBadgers.com

102




Client service team

Andrea Jansen, CPA, CFE
Partner

4807 Innovate Lane
Madison, W1 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2338 | Madison

andrea.jansen@bakertilly. com

John W. Rader, CPA
Managing Director

4807 Innovate Lane
Madison, W1 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2431 | Madison
ihnrader@bakertillv.com

Justin Hoagland, CPA
Senior Manager

43807 Innovate Lane
Madison, W1 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2497 | Madison

ustin_hoagland @bakertilly. com

Logan Connors
Senior Associate

4807 Innovate Lane

Madison, W1 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 6741 | Madison

2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 18

103



Two-way audit communications

As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit.

As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have leamed to beqgin the planning process for next
year's audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our
next audit:

a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, through
our detailed audit procedures.

b, We will obtain an understanding of the five components of intemal control sufficient to assess the
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due o error or fraud, and to
design the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures o evaluate the design of controls
relevant to an audit of financial statements and io determine whether they have been
implemented. We will use such knowledoge fo:

« |dentify types of potential misstatements.
+ Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement.
« [Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures.

c. We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting or
compliance with laws, requlations and provisions of contracts or grant programs.

d. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate,
are impartant for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are
concemed with matiers that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be matenial o the

financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance that matenal misstatements, whether causad by emors or fraud, are detected.

Our audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America.

We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here:
a.  We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise.

b, We understand that the goveming board has the responsibility to oversee the strateqic direction
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the enfity. Management has the
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity.

c.  We need to know your views about your organization's objectives and strategies, and the related
business risks that may result in material misstatements.

d. We anticipate that the Athletic Department will receive an unmodified opinion on its financial
statements.

e. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any
areas where you request addiional procedures to be underiaken?

f.  Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies?
Q. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements?

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 18

104



Alzo, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness and actions of the goveming
hody conceming:

a. The entity's intemal confrol and its importance in the enity, including how those charged with
govemance oversee the effectiveness of internal control?

b. The detection or the possibility of fraud?

We also need to know If you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws,
accouniing standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous
communications with us.

With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. Our final financial fieldwork is
scheduled during the fall io best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fisldwork, we
wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and review drafts of your report as prepared by your
staff. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued afier approval by your staff. This is
typically 6-12 weeks after final fisldwork but may vary depending on a number of factors.

Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit,
it does not change the auditor's sole responsibility to determine the overall audit sirategy and the audit
plan, including the nature, fiming and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence.

We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We
welcome the opportunity to hear from you.

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP Page | 20

105



	Agenda (February 8, 2024)
	Audit Committee Agenda Feb. 2024

	Internal Audit
	Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Plan Progress Report
	Item D.1. Summary - Audit Plan Progress_Feb. 2024
	Item D.1. Att. A. - Feb. 2024

	Summarized Results of Audits Recently Issued
	Item D.2. Summary - Audits Recently Issued_Feb. 2024


	Office of Compliance and Risk Management
	Risk, Compliance and Audit Concept
	Item E.1. Summary - Update on UW RCA Pilot Program

	Youth Protection Update
	Item E.2. Summary - Update on Youth Protection & Compliance


	Office of Information Security
	Cyber Insurance Policy Renewal
	Item F.1. Summary - Cyber Insurance Policy Renewal Update_Feb. 2024


	UW-Madison Annual Athletics Report
	Item G. Summary - UW-Madison NCAA Division I Athletics
	Item G. Att. A. - Feb. 2024


